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MEMORANDUM FOR THE ACTING ATTORNEY GENERAL,
‘;THE HONORABLE HAROLD M. STEPHENS. o

Very truly ycu IS,

John E Heover,
Direltor,
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A gs. Buress of Jnbestigation

Bepartaent of Justice

Lk Post Office Box 4907,

ol Jacksanville, Florida,
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E Division of Investigation, Z il T
United States DepaTtment of Justice, A
i 1001 Vermont Avemue, N. W. D B ivE G IV

5 Washington, D. C. “é Eo e &0
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[f Dear Bir: R

-3 BE: VERNON C. MILIER, with alieses,
by (deceased) ; RICHARD TALLMAN'BALATAS,
7 cbf with eliases « FUGITIVE, I, 0. §1201;
E;‘ % CHARLES ARTHOR "PHETTY BOY™*: .
i with aliases, 1. 0, #1194, et al

CORSPIRACY TO DELIVER FEDERAL PRISONER

Reference is mede t0 Division letter to the C
orfice, of July £7, 1934, setting farth shat BettyjMcFad
Chicago Police Departmont $88762, had been Arrested es Mrs. Glemn
fMorris, alias Mrs. &, A Perry, elias Mre, G, T4 Richards, 1959
et Miemi, Florids, on exber 10, 1927, char with investige-
tion - eomfidence geme, forteited $100.00 dond,

Ingiiry at the Miami Police Department disclosed
that on December 10, 1927, Mp. end Mrs, GlennfMorris were arrested
., ®ith Mr, and Mrs, E, RJ Butsdn and an individual giving hie pame
,f:)/ as J. T4 Miller; that'they were arrested for investigation as
« being suspeoted of conducting confidence games in Miami, but no
definite compleint had been made against them; that all individuals
srrested deposited bond of 100,00 sach and forfeited seume,
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There is Do information availadble at the Miami

Police Depertment eoncerning any of these individuals, = A o
of

notation was found on the arrest cerd at the Detective

the Miami Police Depertment, which sets forth that a Mrs, »

$45 Bast Ocean Avenus, Long Beach, Oslifornis, is & friend of Mres, .
Glenn Morris. The souree of this information is mot availeble, - "

and the officers of the Detective Buresu were unable to throw eny

1ight as to where 1t coame fram, . . -
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Pear 8ir:

Befere:os 1o wede 8o your 1atter dated Mugert 4, 1934, wteredn you -
pot forth $afursetica with respect to the arrest oa Deceaber 10, 1027, of

b iect Galotas anc his wife s Mr, and ¥rs. glenn Borris by he Hant, Yiowids,
Police Deperiment. 14 appenre from yoir Jetter thall coo 7, 3. ¥iller was also
arrested with sutject Gelstes cn the sane date, 88 were Nr, and fire. B Bs
gatacn, There 1t traasaitted herewith and to each of the offices 1istel belse
an abstract of the erininel yecoré ou 7, 3. Eiller, together sith a photogresh
of thie individuil, who =&y possibly be 1denticsl tith the %iller referyed b0

In view of sudbjest Gelatun! prior srreetis in eonnestion with
ecoaficente gones, 4418 sugrestad th-t eath office ressiving & SONY of dkis
Jetter eonduct aprroricte {ncuiries into the arreste reflcotod Yy the inclosed
sbstrsct of erisinal yecord, obtaining {nforactisn with vos ect to sssociated
of Willer, fwmmnofmmmwmummummm
and ap;rehensica of gabject Gelatas. S
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" %o this office at equal imtervals marked for the sttention
of file 63-678. This mail mor dwuld be cntlml for@ .
period of shirty days.
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. spouymous eircular addressed to The Bonorebls The Attorney
General, Weshingtam, D.C., relative %o the Travelers Qgﬂteo'sh

at Arlington, fom and *Pretty Soy® Floyd: I have mis s sureey

tive $0 it, and am edyised Shat 1) 18 TuR by e O,
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I-tnnnutm Derewith. mtu orom“m
brswcmulntr. B. Suith of $kis offies t0 the offest Wat ho '
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- &t 4he depot on the moTaing of She Kansas City mssacrs, and sav ths-

L

At Insbm; &m‘u:ﬂ.’r’ 26, 1954 I ome

_wltn ne semuel Sebults, who resides shers, and i ecuversation

“informed me that Bi6 ecusin, Hrs, Jowsl Lee, was fn Xansas C18y .

shooting. He states that she {9 employed £n a departmest store ot .
She presant $ime iz Xansas Oity, 3he address of which he 8008 MO8 i 7
“"knowj that ber father {s John Les, residing on & rurel route out of
Pryor, Oklabhomm| that she has & brother named Desdy Lee, whe uu. -
one mile west and one mile north of Ada, Okleboma, louhtutm

" she ean bo mata Wiuthu- the hthor or bnmr n‘hwo %
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I 8. Brpartmet of Justice

| Post Office Box 419,
L eee Nazhville, Tennsasee,
\© Wil . Avgust ¢, 1934.

/ Direator,

: Division of Investigation,

\ U. 8. Department of Justioce,
1001 Vermont Avenue, N. ¥.,
Wasghington, D. O.

SIS A

U4 ¥EEIO1ONY

IND
>
¥

A5

4
. 5 P dpt o
e . ;;g;\»

) o

HE: VERNON O. MILLER, with aliases, (Deceased),
Richard Tallman Galatas, with aliases,
Tugitive, I. 0. #1201; Charlea Arthur Floyd,
with aljases, Fugitive, I. O. §1194,
Qonspiresy to Deliver Pederal Prisoner.

Dear Sir:

Reference is made t0 letter from the Birminghém office
to the Nashville office under date of July £4th, and letter from the New

Orleans office to Nashville office under date of July 28, 1534, both oon-
cerning the present location of Louis atlnl alias ﬁtg tin, whom 1%t -

duayo0ay

is desired that ajconfidential inf interview.

When I talked uth—sha stated that she
does not believe it would be advisable for her to let Austip know she

made a special trip %0 see him but that if she were saccessful in inter-
viewing him at Birmingham she would state that ahe was enroute to Florida.

|70

YA NI @714 X400

In view of this I doubt the advisability of having (i
procesd to New Orleans to interview him. It would perhaps de
more advisable for her to await his return to Birmingham which, according .
'1D to letter from the Birmingham office, will dbe approximately Augnst £0, \ _;'
[ 1934, S

Tnless aivised to the oen office of origin .
g r the Division, I shall arrange to furnish with the nesessary

fupds, after Austin returne to Birmingham, interview him
thers.

It 1s requested that the New Orleans office keep in
close touch with this matter 4in New (rleans and advise the B . E/"’
" ond Nachville offices upon Austin'e return to B W/ Ly AL
Koo, =b3;, 2EA -
*% . . .
%% Very truly yours,

eo=Kansas City
New Orleans
Birmingham =5 ( ,
Oklahoma Gity AUG 10 Special Aaont u omrgo. &
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. mmc.mn.u&muu, (hcuu-l);
o RICHARD TALINAR QILATAS, with allsses,
Pugitive, 5.0, f1200; CHARLES ARTAOR -mm
80I* NOTD, with aliases, Pugitive, 1.0, mua
n & - “m !D m.:m mm:. nmn.
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nads iy you %0 fumind ﬂ.thtluuuo-
mmu&uﬁumu Alobean -

for the mriose of hhﬂinh; fouls lut.l.u. alles Bart o

sade by you shich will make 4t pessitle for
to iaterview dustia, aud through the faterview
uummummtmumor-bjmmm
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JOHY, EDGAR MOOVER

Bitiision of Inbrestigation o \
. 3. 8. Bepartmend of Justice :
‘\J FIM:EB !! @.GL

SN T ' Ingust 23, 1934.

MEMORANDUM FOR MR. TMU

In compliance with the request contained in the
attached routing slip from Mr. Newby, I am transmitting
herewith two copies of an ebstract of the criminal
record of J. A,)erady, Identification Unit file #10145.

Respectfully,

Ll eh e

o+ L]

Lo co Schilder.
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4-T50 (2. i-T . .

FEBERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
FOIPA DELETED PAGE INFORMATION SHEET

_1._ Page(s} withheld entirely at this location in the file. One or more of the following statements, where

indicated, explain this deletion.

5 Deleted under exemption(s) bi b-’cv bb

with no segregable

material available for release to vou.

Information pertained only to a third party with no reference to you or the subject of your request.

{1 1information pertained only to a third party. Your name is listed in the title only.

[T Document(s) originating with the following govemment agency{ies)

—  Page(s) referred for consultation to the following government agency{ies);

, was/were forwarded to them for direct response to you.

be advised of availability upon return of the material to the FBI,

—ee— . Pagels) withheld for the following reason(s):

as the information originated with them. You will

& For your infomation: M&MR T &
22, UNITED STATES CODE , SECTioN 53%

B€ The following number is to be used for reference regarding these pages:

- 22915 = 2134

XXXXXX
XXXXXX
XXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXKXXXXXXXX
X DELETED PAGE(S) §
¢ NO DUPLICATION FEE 3

X FORTHISPAGE X
§8.9.:0.6.8.0.08.6.0.8.8.9.6.9.6.99.

FBI/00J)
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' W Bt ‘ August 3, 1934,

3. 8. Bepariment of Justice |
1331 First Net'l. Bank Bldg.,
El Paso, Texas,

/ f
L'-‘/' ""s :
’r
_ Q
Diractor, Re: VERNON C. MILLER, with aliases (Deceased)
Division of Investigation, RICHARD TALIHAN"GALATAS, with aliases,
U.S.Department of Justice, FUGITIVE - 1,0,§1201; CHARLES ARTHUR
1001 Vermont Avemue, N. W., “PRETTY BOY™ FLOYD, with aliases, FUGITIVE,
'aahinston’ Do c. I.o. fll“. 't al -

Conspiracy to Deliver Federal Prisoner.

e %@/ 4y

Replying to Division letier of 30, 1934 concerning one J. A.

JBrad » allas "Duckie®Poyle, alias William. erty, whose record the

vision 1e unable to 'locate, I would respectfully refer you to report of
R. H. Colvin, El Paso, Texas, dated April 21, 19034, in re Vernon C. Miller,
el al, in which the cri.m.rgl record of this pereon is disclosed as follows:

"5.17.18 - Detroit, Mich., 10010, es John A.{moyle.' charged
confidence man,

7-3-18 -~ Toledo, O., 7970, as Johh A. Doyle, suspect confidence man,
released, .

9=-14-18 - Cleveland, 0., 17579, as John .&.Immdy. suepiciocus perecn.,

£+19-19 - Little Rock, Ark,, &e =~~-, char vagrancy, fined $25,

1-5-20 < Memphis, Tenn., 3974, as John Al Alsxander, charged

vagrancy and confidence men. .

8-31-21 - Kansas City, Mo. = 11052, as John\Hyland, oharged confi- -
dence man, fined $100. ) .

4-22-26 - Los Angeles, 24856-M-1 as John Brady, charged suspeot
grand larceny, bunco. i

4=15-29¢ - Saoramento, 1£796-E as J ' » Sharged wegrency anpd
violation Wright Aect ( with Mrs, Alma Benson §F12796-D)
had dbrandy in room; vagrancy echarge & smissed. Vio.
Kansas City, Mo., 11052 as John Hyland, wanted, $300 reward, |

(

arrested State warrant for bomd jumping « 6-0-290.%
I:

The above record is practiecally the same as disclosed by Divisionof + :
S A Identification file §10145, Brady's desgription, fram the prison records
Rnast at La Tuna, is as followa: T © ¢
S5 QUPIES DESTROYED ' REO% BD (L3 g e )2
; AU 20 tyoadse = 80 Byes - Brow INDEXED e (T
Ht. - B' 8" Hafr - Black, tinded with gray 1 .
Wt. - 123 P.P.C, -8 0 1 U 0003 \ '
Comp. = Pair : L17 U DOOI i A”@
oo
S ((;"' iy .
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If, from the foregoing, you cannot locate the record of this
individual kindly advise me and I will attempt to obtain an additiomal
copy of his fingerprints.

Yory truly yours,

R. H. co:."m’
Special Agent in Charge.

RHC:bg
¢c Eansas City.
#62.332,
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heve furnished tas esulted in the location of the
Fecard of 7o A Brety with ellases, . ‘ """“"
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e -,‘ L 1& o o 2 R
} Vammn c.Onm.m, sith Altassh, (Doasaned), {5 RSP IRIOY 0. nm.rvhrﬁ: i
7| RICHARD TALIMANGALLTAS, with aliases, mgitlw. €
I. O, #1201} CH:RLES ARTHUR “PRETTY Bor"on.om, :
; o e T | e 3
i . Pnlico DOpu'tmont Phoonix city. n.a., bonm porm_ .

1' R ] ““:‘i‘-‘ P s -e‘,'{_... l- T ) “r",-ck &' : i.-u.-‘b = .
o L M, 0. WMol atated ‘tbat he Fray mohneiﬁ '“{ Abe lhm

‘rms CASE ORIGINATED AT mgag cj,ty’
I

mmaﬂ_ PR nnmm 4 mmmm

| miratahes, m. | s |8/ 2 w/ealn |

-, T "

" _ - yesembling photograph of "Pretty Boy* Floyd has been s.n
~,.. . Shdt vieinity sinoe first of yearj unable asgertain N L
fos o 'identity thie persony  Report that *Pretty Boy" Royd i o 5
-, was in Indiapola, Mims, on ¥/26/34-apperently imfounded, i’
;,rlowd repofted to have boen -Aressed as ‘s youan &% that
.2 't4me tut investigation revealed that thero were throi'-t ;
.. wanen in the party -hi.oh Floyd wes believed do de a A‘i
. membery, J, Alber atas still rosiding at. lnson.ic -
Pemple in Atlanta, Ga., reported €o get wmail only frun ERM

his mothaart at Aldarny, Ga.

Gt entie AVRITL e _r‘§ - v, -“-_ g »?‘. L aw m—;.‘:‘; ! .
Fae T T L
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©"Divisiom letter aated Aprll 1z. 193¢, gaanma 46" the
'Biminghan Division ormm e o BTN D *‘"""_‘“ P

.o ?“» .-.'-_.t £

'* g nmmm. ifac ﬁw

: RRCS &lbaequent ‘to tho roce.tpt al' Dlﬂaion htter ot nrorme,
ocmmnicatlon was had with Mri C. W, Noel who reported his aldress as oare of ..
the Alsbema Mills, Clanton, Ala,, but a personal interview with him was unmeceaarnl
kbl he appeared at the Birmingham office on May S1; 193¢, at which t:.m In IR
rurniahen the rollormg n.tomtzon to Bpeom Agent. Dy O Smithi ‘ivoul: 3

RN

£
-+,
3

lﬂ.lls and my bo reached at Glanton or Dadevills, J:I.a, PRy S g SR A
R R TR A o N N R, NEEe o IR _}w- %; e

N -"'w.: s Nool advised that whils ‘In %iisa end Sand Springs; OCkieboma, : -

:u: 1930 or 1931, he ascertained that "Pretty Hoy" Floyd was infatuated with a g!.rl
tho was emplgycd‘at tho cmnder lu].ls in Sand s,pringa mm ,;m u it

3
ot
- e

WA

-
. P LR AR S -*-‘1:4.'5

M= L1 I8015 2

UNITED STATER . .

S Division o l W: ‘:' - 1934 P.M. w |
S Ll '

: REAY OF INVESTHIATION
1 Ste Paul oo : : i vor s
1 Nashville GOPJES DESTROYRD FN_ 1

bW R S Ly b L s ot bt
I e d Wil tekd e e




. “becams & notorious outlawj thas while oo the.sirests of Tulsa, Gclatoma,

furnfsh the name and addrou or the gir:l. .‘m qmation, horever,‘ mw poopio*
~ 41 Gand" Springs will recall that Floyd had & iyl Triens ‘thond hefore Be o

i

same three or Pour years 820, he sav & men got in@n‘num,bnd ndt:; e
. bystander, ehode name apd n‘ﬁdroaa s bas forgotten, gadvised . ﬂnt ﬂb ﬂi,
'Prgtty BDY" nayd, ror !hich reaapu n'og} took,; ;oqg looz e m
i s ..#‘u.-__:».-,,. e T pot 0 Wt
| 5 eed Sempsmaeh by whating that on e Bawrday Alsht mou?: 2N
How Years. 1954. he was n the Barber ahop owned by Artlaf Brooks $n Giru\l.‘ S
Ala., whiob 1s nsar Oolpmbus, Ga,; that & man oams {n the. bub-r nhop who .70
. P{tted the description bf Floyd; that the man was well dremmed, with's Mo
" zaincoat’ or leather coal and kept both hands 1n his 6det pockets et all’ tmaj
" ‘that this man was sosompanied by & poldfer, OF at lsast én 1ndividual u-ma

- 4n military uniform; that Noel and Arthur Brogks hed & few. drfnks 4n she i

- baek ed ‘of $heé barber shop cwned by "“Brooks; where Aiquor is 1016. of which "'

. . ishop that day. “Presestly the Chief.of Polics, hamed Oakes, Appeared .at. ‘lln AL

oA ‘tho zan reaamblha ?1074 replied “He '111 Play: p_e_].‘l. ,8'”’-“3 s .

. - $he man was_stopping at & hotel; homor, ‘be 4id mot ‘sndeavor to ascertain bis

time the stranger appéared fi the back end; yemsining there for s short portod,
7% and after he left Koel stated: to Hrooks that the man looked mﬂ.y;sb,- Sae A
*".. #Pretty Boy" Floyd, shereupen Brooks agreed and stated thet the man whé' o ad e
.. #eobled ¥1oyd had left 4 sultcase full of autamtic pistols At $hs barber’ .

barber shop, end while there be was closely serutinized by the mamn who . .
resembled Floyd; that affer the Chief of Police left the barber ahop, the i -
sqm of Arthur Brooks yremmrked that the Chief always gets his nan, 'haroupon

e -.An : '_. S FL 5._’_ A S - XTI I ; y :
,;r omvhoroumhhﬁnqﬂmdo lnquh-y&loolxoia M}w _g:“‘:"-
v nu huainus, when Nool informed hinm of his being & $extile vorhr,, the'd -
#*. mah_replied *1fke heli*s :When No#l & ol tho -gtranger_his dusinses, he mm o
" "he Dad a woll with him", Nosl stased thet be $hought this indicated that™ -+ "

local address, nor 4id he make inquiry 40 ascertain §f the stranger was drtﬂns

an automobile, nor 444 he inform the Chief of Police in Girerd relative to his '

Y aportens: who i espeoially fand of .ahioksx ighting, -Hosl sontends that.gf .

. appearance of Floyd, ard by this’ ubans 1% 15 bel{eved *Protty Boy* rloya gan‘”-‘

apioim or tho atrqor.--'mw 5g‘$§ i&‘; .‘-f?a—e:&,. a#wmriw;"é‘.? ﬂ-’r,'f)'?j{:{““"’fg“
o e a

T ey *-fri -"o:;"s'i.
- o m utorrul vith llool. lcroloptl %ﬁa Artlmr m?l%

l’ "
-_:.‘ S 4 K at r _____

S I e

;‘ ‘dn agent fram this Division wil)’ join‘hn atid Yroceed $o’ GM.M 3 that S
would b 'possidle 30 take s Py drinks with AFthur Brooks, amd mention the ¢ -

e located in that dtah':lot. Hoel scntends that Tloyd ‘18 prodably Aiding’ ‘ous.”

" 4n the Chatanooches Yalley; between colmbns, Ve, and Girerd;’ m., €9 308 g:-

.. mection s infested with dootlegrers and wiould be an {deal place Tor 4 bank

robber to hide; Be further surmised that Clyde Barrow end Bopnie' ‘Parker .

probably sommuted betwsen Louisiena apd the Chatanooghee Yglloy prior to tho

deaths of the latter two, hmver he could turnish no dermto inromatim
in this omeotion. _ - , _

He was under the 1nﬂmeo or M@or duri.ng tho above

intsrview, Nosl volunteered. his aerrtoos 1n approaohug Arthur Brooks for .
any Momtion of value, - - S .

-~




- 7T . Endufalohger e A "'3 ,:wav‘wq-v gy e
P v:}- 3 -"'i“xé{:z -\ i b:‘:h) h th"*r m w‘m‘ !001 mii - :QE ; b ‘-w- _
+. ‘Division OFfise, at whieh $ims he wae interviswed 1!; Spcm Agut)‘. 8 !Ian-m 5
“->“ahA furnished the same informetion &8 ha%\gt out, abm ‘but i aﬁ&zt;ﬂ;; T
s that time Mri Nopl stated thét he was:in Birminghs he pmiposs &f . iqmring
*., in eddition t9.his present pABUPAtI0D as & ile" nm pcharmlo, & sﬁun‘ T

W v SR ’.Z . s an ‘undersover man with the Alabama’ nﬂ.h for the purpoao o reporting m_‘ i
--} v ‘Union labor agitation in the midlse ‘Mri Hoel also inuuted that he was’ .7 .
2 R Anprested (n utmrtng [ polition with the ﬂowmnt 2340 faves tigaters

o

.\""" o l‘t‘g_‘

rm‘mnuing m;ti.ption -ns oé.ﬁauotod by 8pe
. . L% : y B 5 *
. .?-xt ni.ght h mtzonoa a : -
botton =11 Yowns J00atsd across the Fiver.from £olumbua, -6}’ and’ chuc -nuy 2
“uré still referred $o s seperate entitien, thoy ha'n been’ omolida?od inte
m mnic&pal:ity, nmly nmg*c}ty. Alsg xs 3%,? 3 :ijﬁ “‘ﬁisﬁiﬂ B
Agent exhibited to Chief of Pouce Os O, Gay & photosraph of
*Proetty Boy" Floyd and Chief Gay advised that he has seen tho man eanowherse .
"~ &0 Girard within the last few days and thad m‘"li.lﬂ.irl W !
; 'f;_';}_ w5 fairly poait:.n~ that 4% m the sems man

; ~"~}-- g Dplades ity z:.g,‘... s .ra !
. . ‘\}llt. &:‘f ’f !H:I.too Io &h
_ li

. hal rsbont]g stated to him that he had seen "Protw oy
-uka ‘8goy that at the time ho, Lieus,. Bntiu. pu.l

S I A . p‘.propﬁoiarg ﬂimd;
the i.noidont rutor:nd % by ‘Ge I. ‘Woel and recalled the cecaéion 4o the bent of
.. dis recéllestion, es around Nev Year, 1034, and upon agent displaying ‘the
photosraph of Floyd, Broaka exclaimed that it appeared to de the zems man,
Brooks further advised that thie partioular party had a miitease with him and
stated that he had just ‘ecme from Opelikm, Ala,, and upon leaving the shop,
* acked if he might loan the nitoue th-ro for a Mea Brooks assented and

TR IR B ‘}’ -gv&.;gu,‘_ T N"‘d‘(_’ ] if‘,"_ﬁ“r '.D,:’{.\Q.;‘} ‘?"‘";J




- several daya 18ter’ tho an same baer to tho barbqr lhoprrotrimd hés

" and miaod that hc was on his ny o Iac.k;mn}o_, &,.‘:,;‘!-:» $:i 3;} 3
. . .'-',."','“ -‘,-—{:-*,*.',.ﬁ ¥ e s )mﬁ- TS S “':,r

..:°-‘,’ f‘ 3,&.;1; m, s -or"hrﬂmr m'a', kb" 2180 ldaatﬂ’ted

. pleture of nqﬁ as spparently the’m wan and’] ruuom; qﬂm.l.ntia ‘ idi,

L :I.nromt:lon roopind rrun Noels . . --; 35 s ‘ ‘ S

. ‘_ t\.r. : B "
. Agont. noanpaniod by cnm or ;
Beaohio Eonrd, proprietress of a beer plaoo on 8th An.. Mruﬂ, m udﬂ.uﬂ
that a man who resembled ¥loyd's pibtures c:l.oae:l.j had “boen there on & wty .,

:_..‘fﬂnishtsbemreandthatmrommom‘ ‘!orkgugateramgthoparty. -

e Ty "~ Chiel Gay .mm that@ l.a.rco
. c:l.ty and c;nra ars bootleggers and that b’ has R
among this element.emd requested that hs he allowed 6 ‘onduct the mnstigation
“4  4n that meighborhood himself{ that an agent Déing a stranger in jown wonld
- excite susploion and Dot lmouns the proper )u-tj.os .40 sopntaoct, Fioyd might u
" tipped off, 1if {n that ticinity. Agent left the photogreph of Floyd with Ghior
- Gay and the latter furgher advissd that be will dndeavor so looats. thé hiding™::
place of Floyd, through his confidential informants, in whioh event he will .
immed fately notify the Birmingham QOffice, or 4f he should ageln meet this man -
1n Girard. he '111 imodiately trroat him on mpioton,and}aw hs,m ﬁngorm'lnted.

...-f

ALl e TR ;f_{,f’ AN S v
.'": SERTIY T AT COUIMBDS, GA.‘% ot aas jé':' #
K S . fr-’,\ ERE O g »
- ’_ ;};\“_ - -t&t.k”.q’ ’,.n Q th’ mﬁwmt
‘Pul{co Departmspt, advised Ypat @ “grestly rgsomble '!rntw n.m

‘wys’nrrested theie on suspiclon-ebout ux goaths ego] hat his rngomint- AR

. _weTe taken and pramptly forwarded to ‘the Diviaton; that the reply fram lhahingtm
- 4fsclosed that this man was not Floyd apd had po kmown. crin:l.nl reoard; Sgte -

. Plersan was of the opinion that this was the same party seen at Phoenix City and
Girard; Ala; Hs could not; howsver, submit $he name 6 $his man ap the duilding

was being moﬁolod uﬁ a mbor ot‘ h:.o neoﬁo hnn bom n;syhood an ¢ nmlt

‘ »o““vi’lqrm'm it

'Oﬂﬂf m "Dhotosranhuum»

i
d % ana adrised th anydus resembling Fia
3 ponding mwstisatiun 01' thin mttor

3' .A---b

n e '”‘,_ P

e bw--n-ov‘ai > D g P M Ty S KR h-‘-ﬁl -«25* zf)"-—% ks . S L
SRR 'n:o tauowing umatgation uas eonduotod w Bpooial Agent
I. % su'onoz w IO ISR .

'v

ltr. 0. 0. u-ay, chiecr or Polioa advi.ud egont that ho nde
several attempts to secure information from a mmber of his informants oon-
oerning the alleged presence of "Pretty Boy” Floyd in the vicinity of Phoenix
City, dut that he has deen unable to secure m 1ntomation . 4 n].m.

1




3 "&""“"W’i‘i&‘i—d ni
ana u:htb:tad to hin », Jhotosnph

S 1:.’ :
* &t mdlviduu that he had ever ptn 'in Ph
“77F poltes Gay, G 1s oneler bis most Teliable informante, end’
" :1:13 usually Pamilar with all anferworld ‘aotivities 1n Phoeniz OLEYs. - o
' etated that he haé seen numerdis photographs of Floyd, a.nd 'hhlimt that he 0. <.
" w1l have no trouble in resogniging *Pretty: Bor ‘shonld he Ilah an nppeara.nu .
.- 48 Fhoenix o1tys pramised t0-eooperate &nd endeavor :to umﬂm

thm:uomtutﬁthnhrgomrormmr

leggers and g re in Phosnix Gity; and will bde’an the dlert for the a

_ anes of enyons reéembling l’loyﬂ, and rcport aw 1nfomtihﬂho rnoin go 3

-Chief ‘of Podioe Faye ‘F o e : ;ﬁ{ R AR B
i

r‘_r s i : $ . "'-:i{f_ SR VAT
o prtasst; amo'a-.- L

: a-t;_,'..‘-f-t R A+ o8 SO o (", .-',,"-- AENO S
A LT Leeus Be ¥l Bavkins; Bhoenix’ Gity Polics vaved.
66 agent that he ‘has’been on-the “lockomt tornoyﬂ far m putm pup

ghat he has not mnawnanbu- : - : h

Lisut, Hawkins agent {nterviewed -
and exhibited to him a photogramh of Floyd, '
seen ‘aA individual in Phoenix Oity for the past two days uho lookoﬂ jnst
-.14ke Floyd's photograph, Hs stated $at tbis mmm ‘had passed him on -
the strest several timss, eni belfoves that he will ses him agaim within’ tln_ *
.. next few days. acoording $0 Lieut, Bawkins, i T

" that ke ,han alwe bim'a nnable'mmt. m
exaggeration,
'?PW?-.‘“P presence

i
ho had houd nwra.l boothggors in Fhoenix G1ty make tho'_mark tlnt Toyd
‘bad been in tho ﬂci.nity of Lolumbdug, s that. he never ,pau ay attontm SN
' ' . : oqndati -

D,f CETRn of Floyd wes A
7 Ii_th n; muim;u1 @-m krmt
TR G, Eavicing $tate
- '_*un ponsidered. by ‘the Phos PO
a3 thelr best sources of information ud un ropart my tnrormtim abot e
*Protsy Boy" without hoaitntiona e IR _ PR *\‘_-'1‘-":. v
: LT , gy £

 Agent Mtructed to repart
any isformation they mey obtain ooncerning the presence of Floyd in Phoenix
City to elther Chief of Palice Gay or Lisut. Hawkins, Mr, Gay stated that
he will cammnicate with the Birmingham Office if any rnrthor informm tion
is odtained concerning Floyds
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' am’t no’t uailablo Zor uteruua s ‘?"gﬁ_"“"""a‘% ‘_;:I:‘

=4 ?'B-u:’"ﬁ _cj-' e o gl -
' A L U O NS
ST S id ':é
‘h l. Ouratroot:

L FL e T ueortamd ‘through city ‘Detective Bagh Brown Ahe:
- ‘3. Albert Ga].atu‘ trother of eubject Richard. . Galatn, is loozted at the
" Masonio Temple; 9 Cain Strest; that he gets maid regalarly, fram sone mn

.. a%t Albany; Ga.j suppossd to be ‘hia methnrt n& that be hnp ?oon u %
' ~-recently and may &t nu from that pleces. DT 4:;&‘ B AT
v o t-"{ £ e J i ;‘?bé ‘.&é‘f . - bt ¢

LU T U S m ofr1s on}l Chist Post OLL1ew mpoom-,*;-o
. was made for mn oonrago on J& bort Galat’a rursthirw{w” ¥

M V- N .I.‘J- ‘,{4 4 - V-:r- :‘
ST v* Im v o, Garrnq. la.naser of ‘the lostorn tlnion matn m
at ).‘hrlatta Street, advised that scme minths ‘ago he was notified by head- °
quarters of the Western Union to wateh for telegrams goling to No; 9 Cainm = -
; Street, Atlanta, especially to J, Albert Galatas, He stated that all hlognns
. SR LR -~ going ‘o thet ldﬂrus would 50' i'ﬁted"ﬁhﬂng’ﬁ"‘tho ‘oand u'andh Dtﬁ.ch'"&nﬂ ‘that i
/gvent any telogrms were dol;venﬁ to palatas; that dnrlng ‘lh' past wr::?.

months he ¥ad nod beer o notified m that he qaa not bolicu

r\.reoeive& aq t '
LN ‘-

e LR eIt th My 86, 1954, Special Agont D.
TR .eall trom the shor:lrt'z Office at Indfamcla, Iiuu Feparsing tmt "Protty Boy"
3.7 .¥loyd was in that county $n odnpany with two women eid ket Floyd was Crouod
27 "7 as a womaps® Shortly thereafter similar information was receSved from the %1 i
0 .0 ' Bashville orﬁu. who received the information from m;notor of Ponoo. Im o
T, Griffin, of thy Memphis Plive Departmenty’ ‘*4 ‘letier Prok 'sto Naativinde | -
j Offige dated July 26, 1934, &idressed to the Blwiinghgn Offipé »nnrm otk
t.he u}ophonto onnmaauon.. S SOk B - i i NS it X AP Wi

R -" "' i

< ey y ¥ ;
-"&!-"*ﬂ' b-‘-;f‘--;:y;bdw o"!"“‘""‘"-- uqu..-s" 4 L Ghrg d fai ¥ o
3 - t'ononng 1mati.gatzon na ocnducted by apoohl Agnt
I’. A. Tﬂpln x 3 ’» e

= J.gant oontaetod Dlpnty Shorirr Hogin, Indianola. Migs., who
advisod that Deputy Sheriff ¥, H, Pratt of Inverness, Miss,, had alvised that
office that ha had received inromucn ‘that Charles "Pretty Boy" Floyd end
two wamen were in that vicinity, Agent advised Da;uty Sherirr Hogin that:
he would proceed to the Sheriff's orrioo. '

.
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e “wm_. 100 TGN o o
2 : amirr W D5 muu. .n-.. xnuanoin, mm; .amoa tmu
Dopuw, m Hc ?ratt, of. Inurn.u. Misn,, had yeported $3 hl.n ﬂn‘t nnrning
that Lester Kinz; & highly nppoetid citizon whd resides an the Wico Flanta
tio:i, looated ‘abaut, ‘geven

"-had nformed biin that $wo wamen were at the hame of H, R. o WAL
‘{s loeatéd about seven miles Southwewt of Trivernsssy that .these two waien -
. .- onme in the night before Uriv¥ing & 1934 Ford Seda ,‘that abou't three homtha

T .. . .prior, tha same tvo mn nd 'Protty Bay"

: ' 5{ lhputy sn.nrr e B Pntt adv;.ao& “thnt Iu‘.rs fur
him w:lth the nunu 442 number of this’ ur, “and that’ 4nquiry by 8he R
_Marlow of the Vioksburg ﬂaeri.ff'n otﬁoo ‘Tovealed that the mator mumbey 6F

asen, Inva::Ma .i’ )nm -

..4,,

Agent, acoanpaniod by Shertrr Marlow and five of his dop.lti.ea,
o .. o~ o DFoceeded to the home of H, R. Ramphrey, which is losated ebout seven miles -
2% 7 7 ‘Southwset of Indiamola, Missy ‘wnd Agent a.nd ‘Sheritf Marlow searched the houuo.
i, - while the remaining officers goyered the honao. but ‘were mblo o 2404 nm
“w, ¥hore yho n.nuarod t-ho {oaari;tinn or Ghu'ha thhur "Pre ' Floyd

.»_-,.- er !»’r.-“

u-.a-;-g:.; ‘¥‘ ,& _‘_\

- ;1;,-_,"2; ;:? abmmnuma 2 L
5 “""lakod?o o ‘the "ariver :of thb. gar; rhodriﬂaminthgnightborou,

Dame was Ruby Layns; 608 Chine Street, Vickstirg, Mise;; edvised that she was .

s wE - apd Jack Laroy, who 1e also & tm, ‘drave frdm Vicksburg.$o her fatherts. m,
“ " . He R. Rampbrey, the night before; ' She Purther aiviced that W, f; Mussel) wis .
& very good friend of hers and that was $bs $eason she had the ear. ngishrod
. 4n his namej ﬁut he ‘was £o-longer in the atate of !l.iniuippi,. ‘Put wme In
I lamnhu. Tenn,; and ohe Wioight that b Worked for DInty Moove,  #hs’mid. M
'-;_ () purchlsod tho ,lo:d sodan. noto §18530980, from ‘the Herft MWotor Company <
o w nd, was bayisg foi'some

= .. papers whioh she emu,m,&

rm....::,k-... Mz.._.g:-.:., "z e 2 TR BT Bk DERCL: SRR &

<5 S R _‘fhe fellowing duariptions nro &tﬁned frcn pn-soml ﬂtm
tion and I.ntorriu h:y .lg.nt R SRS . :

' _j' ﬂmﬁ Eon) Mre. I.H. Rnaam. anaa Mby Lqrno
Residence | -“-«903 chm 8t., viclnsburg. Miss,

age . il

Haight
Weight
Build
.
A T e L bt Al T S G L AT R L UL E T S L SR WS Ay Q‘;‘F!E'ﬁ.‘f—M" e P ;i-:ﬁ i e g e, b_.‘. "\;‘_3"::"7'
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T . .-woman who Pirst gave her name as Mrs, W. B Russell; but who later stated’ hu-
_ - the driver and owner of the oary’ anﬁ that ‘ahe and her elster; . Pessic R, Warner, -
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nnodiatoly upon uturning to .T.ndinola. llian.. nent
ommicatod by long distance telephons with Aecting Bpecial Agent in c.hargo
D, O, Suith, of the Birmingham Division Offiocs, anmd advised him $hat the
aoaroh for chu-laa Arthur "Protty Boy" r:l.oyd 1n Bunﬂowar county, Mias,,
.was in tai.m A,
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Oklahama City, Oklahama
August 8, 1934
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Director, = g % ,;‘Zm.,m-\‘“' ~ 7

Diviajion of Investigation, A e e P

U. S. Department of Justice, * ﬁmlﬁ‘

1001 Vermont Avenue, K. ¥.,
Washington, D. C.

Dear Sir:

VERNCON C.Cimm with aliases, {Deceased);
RICHARD TALIMAN , with eliases =
FUGITIVE, I, O. $1201; CHARLES ARTHUR "PRETTY
BOY®LOYD, with aliases ~ FUGITIVE, 1. O.
1194, et al,

Conspiracy to Deliver a Yedern)
Obstruction of Justice.

Het

Prisoner -

Reference is niﬁde to your letter of July 31, 1934 ip the above-
ecaptioned case, particularly t¢ that portion of it referring to

-

I think the actions since the contact Agent Andersen had with.
re or less conclusively prove the unreliability of this individual,
1 feel, and s0 doee Agent Ande according to recent conversation by me
with him at Kansas City, that s a ljar and is absolutely untrust-
worthy. It is to be obmerved fram other files, recofds of which are in the
Division, that Eva Racchetti)Simpson, sister of AdemiRacchetti, is now in
jail in Texas on & Rational Mytor Vehicle Theft Act charge., She stole a car

from Wewoka, Oklahoms and took it into Texas. The same day that the car :
was stolen in Wewoka, picked up and he told members of the Sheriffts

office that he was working with this Division iz an effort to losate Floyd

and Racehetti, and infommed them of the exact sums of money that had been
paid him by the Division. He has been in this office in an effort to get

the Raccbetti woman out of jail, I feel that we should have no further con-
tact with him for the reason that I think he has double crossed us, and would,

in any e¢ircumstances, do tke same thing.

It may be posaible that Floyd and Racchetti are visiting some of
their relstives, The homes and locations of these relatives are such that &

surveillance eannot be maintained by Agents for the reason that they are in

Agent 0'lLeary is specially assigned to this

rural anéd isolated communities.
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matter and is working in Wewoka, Earlsboro, Seminole and contiguous sec~
tiona_in an effort to obtain information as to Racchetti's and Floyd‘s
present whereabouts. He is endeavoring to do this through persons wham we
believe deaire to see these men apprehended, and whom we believe will fur-
nish information eoncerning them., Special Agent F. S, Smith is specially
assigned to this matter in the Muskogee area near which is Sallisaw, the
home of Floyd'e mother and most of his other relativea, Agent Smith is
constantly in toueh with people in Sallisaw, few though they be, who, we
believe, are desirous of seeing Floyd apprehended. These people, every time
a bit of information is obtained by them, contact Agent Snith, and leads are
being followed ocut constantly and other further contacts are developed in
this ecase.

The information as collected by the Agents in this case is subd-
mitted to me promptly, and I am endeavoring, at intervals of every few days,
to sutmit to the Division a report of what is deing done, J am giving this
case my close, personal supervision and attention, and I can assure the
Division that there is no one anywhere more desirous of effecting the appre-
hension of Floyd and Racechetii than I am.

DAIGET BRANTLEY,
Speclal igent in

e¢ Eansas City

b o e Y

T T T T
LEE % e iy e i e ke 2 ¢t

s T i

DR i P Gl




-
e B
e Y g

:\sh
¥eshington, D- G-

o. '
Kw Afau Q.._,f_ \E\-\ OL/3t O SR,

@

’ T T
L .
-~ A Ls
. . e e,
’ R L S,
. B u ¥ ‘.
. et .o
. ; S e

- o A B Wi TR $ Fu £ e et SRR o £ o S

Tostal Telegrc;"pb

THE INTERNATIONAL SYSTENM

Conunercial

= Cubles
WEATID o Tl Sl

I (Tierrca
Cubles
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.- RICHARD TALLMAN GALATAS, with elieses ~ mn & -
T. 0. #1201; CHARLES ARTHUR PPRETTY MO mn:,
with alases - mxrm, z.o. mu. AL, ol

‘ C uader cm .r lmm 3. 1934. e a.nu uvmu mu-
- yoquostad that a notice be placed 1n tim files of the Jdentification {;

Police Department Do, 300, The f parsgrapbs taken from this
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Wmmtathcahnmunthutdlms
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3. 8. Bepartment of Fustice
p : Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
1 /4 DB:CG August 4, 1934 =
62-481 :
Director, ’ _ >

Division of Investigation,

U. S. Department of Juatice, .-
1001 Vermont Avenue, N, ¥,, -
Washington, D, C,

Dear Sir:
0
Re: HAZEL ; BALPH ROUE,
et al, N\
Harboring and Concealing lilbur%nder—

hill for shom a warrant of arrest had
been ismued,

' On July 5, 1934,/Mr. Roy Casey of the U, S, Bureau of Prisons,
working ocut of Dallas, Texgs, and inspecting county jails - in Texas and
Oklahcma, appearsd at office and stated that recently he made an in-
gection of thefcountylfail atfuthrie, _Oklahomn shere several Federal
priaonern were co.nrin

He stated that Ralph Rowe, a Federul prisoner, held on &
charge of Harboring Underhill, had made complaint to the effect that he
had been miptreated by the County anthorities there. Casey t0ld me that
his investigation disclosed thet Rowe's claimmin this respect are without
merit, and he learned that Rowe is an obstreperous and recalcitrant priscner. .

Mr. Casey further stated that he learmed rm_Roy enness,
the Jailer at Guthrie, that probably some effortis were made same time ago
to deliver Rowe from the jail; that some saws were found cutside the jail
window one morning and that these saws were given t0 John Burnett, a Special
dgent of the Bock Island Railway of Oklaboma City, for purposes of examining
them for fingerprints. Mr. Casey further stated that probably the Sheriff’s
office at Guthrie would know the fdentity of the persons suspected of leav-
ing these saws, Mr. Casey furhished the foregoing information for such in-
vestigation es he considers it warrants by this Division,

l Agent F. S. Smith of this office interviewsd Roy Jenness, the
Jailer at Guthrie, who stated that on a date which he has forgotten, probab-
1y the latter part of May or the first of Jume, 1934, LorRJohnson came to
the County Jail at Guthrie about 5:30 or €:00 p. m. to visit his brother,

"Sleepy”, Johnson; that lon was driving an automobile and remarked that he

{
Y ooz, ‘L’Ti L;\.,_glfw.
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borroud this ocar in Seminole, Oklahm t0 make the trip to Guthrie; that
later on the same dete, mbout 10:00 p, m., a stranger appeared at the Jail
inquiring for Lon Johnson and stated that he had lcaned Lon his ear fn .
Oklahama City to come to Guthrie to see his brother in jail and that Johnson
had not returned 1t; that Lon Johnson, while at the County Jail, talked to
“Sleepy" Johnson through the bars and was not obassrved to have been on any
other part of the premises; that the following morning a prisoner told him,
Jenneas, that there wers some saws lying just inside of the east window;
that he did not know how they got there, but they were unguestionadly slipped
in for the benefit of same prisoner in jail, but for wham he does not know;
that he took the sawa, three in mmmber, which were mpped in s plece of
paper with the ends sticking out; that he turned these saws over to John
Burnett, Special Agent of the nock Island Railroad, who happened to be at

the County Jail at the time, and who steted that he would have an examination
made of them to determine whether there were any fingerprints on them,

Jenness atated that he has no informetion as to who might have
left the saws thers, dut in view of the fact that Lon Johnson and "Sleespy™
Johnaon were associated with Ralph Bowe in harboring Wilbur Underhill, that
he merely suspected that Johnson might have left them there, and this i»
nothing more than & surmise on hia part.

Special Agept E. ¥. Bopp of thie office interviewed John H, Bur-
nett, Special Agent of the Bock Island Railroad, 21 East First Street, Okle-
homa City, at which time, he stated that he had overlooked having any examin-
ation of the saws made until several weeke after hs obtained them, and when
examination was made, there were no fingerprinta found on them.

The case as to Rowe and the Johnsons has been disposed of by
prosecutive action as is reflected in the report of Special Agent K, D
Deaderick of this office, dated July 26, 1934.

In view of the fact that this matter seems to consiet of @ mmber
of speculative surmises, it is not felt that further investigative action &s»
warranted and none will be instituted unless specifically instructed by the

Division,

Spacial Agent in Charge

e e 4w —




August 4, 1934,

e

Special Agent in Charge,
Kansas City, Missouri.

Dear Sir:

RE: ALVIN KARPIS, with alfeses, I. 0. #1218; R
ARTHUR R. BARVZR, with aliases, I. 0. #1219; etal;
EDVARD GEORGE BREMER, VICTIM EIDNAPING :

: _ Reference is made to Division le dated July 25,
: 1934 with whic: were tranamitted photographs of Tudie@asano, Eansas S
: J City Police Department #19257. The photographs were tranamitted in
e rasponse to the request contained in your letter dated July 17, 1934,
= You aleo made reference in your letter to Page 6, Paragraph $ of the

' }t report of Special Agent M. C. r, dated at Kansas City, Missouri,
DTy May B, 1934, #hich has to do h the ar:??(-of Fra Mlle
R ~Subject in the Kanmo case, Roy/Brown, GuyJiErock, JoeXpPassano, John

Lazia, and UTNéFe 10 connection with & liquor comspiraey ecase. The tie-8p "
between Frank B)ff.!ulloy' and Jo zia ghould be of considerable interest -
in connection with the Eanmo investigation and it is suggested that scme
attention be given to the possibility that the individuals involved in :
.~ the liquor conspiracy case may have also been involved in the Eanmo case. -
= It 48 knmown that Paula Harmon, who is now associeting with the Barker-

- Karpis gang, visited Frank B, Mulloy in Kansas City, Missouri during .=

L

bt G e ST T

April, 1933 end 1t is possible that Malloy wfll mow be dimposed to . . >
furnishing information in sonnection with the recent shboting of John ~ '~
1azie, _ . ) o - L _
AE Copies of the abstract of criminal record of Tudie > .
=’ Pasano, Kansas City Police Department #19257 are tranemitted, horewi th,
i " Yery truly yours ' ' ' IR
5:,‘14& - . . “&‘-.\
' - 7/ F ’ f - H - -‘ -
Rb . rT"’“’j Enclosure 551985 John Edgar Hoover, hz- 2 FS - Q2143
? ; S CC 3%, Paul Director. . on neatibthhieiala
TCInS re Chicago mﬂﬁ OSSR
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JOHNIEDGAR HOOVER C ‘ é ,

- i pingcTOR”

| Bitision of Jrbestigation _ S
' | 3 5. Bepurtment of Justice -
| | Buslington, B. €. ‘ |

3 <
ﬂ LAH: £EP &~ - August 2, 1934.

MEMORANDIM FOR MR, TAMi,

there are transmitted herewith six coples of the transcript of the criminal -

record of Lawrence Albertfownsend, Identification Unit file dﬂg}jﬂ._ ¥o .
photographs of Tomsand eppear in the file of the Identification Unit. '

+ There are elso transmitted herewith with respect to the same request
six photographs of VWalter ngara‘l'obey, TIdentification Thit file #55060.
Inssmuch as no transcripts of the criminal record were desired for Tobey,

f/ no copies are being transmitted.

!
}

Respectfully,

L. A. Hince. ' i

3

0 - ' - :
- ) \! ' . |

j " In accordance with Mr, Newby's telephonic request of June 28, 1934,
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JOHN"EDGAR HOOVER c . ﬂ ' ,
+ DIRECTOR ' f : : S Mr. Nathan

g%&n‘n{gﬁ '. Eﬁm""—‘\:— | Mr, Tolson

” rClegg e

' Mr. Baughman ...
ﬁ-’-w uf:nﬂn Chief C1OTK .conceree
S ’nlpnghm, @. Mr. Cottey oo
2 .. - | | August 4, 1934. {
i_,_. -:'-‘ / \,\:
B MEMORANDUW FOR THE DIRECTOR. |
55 =
5 . By reference from your office, please be informed 3
that Agent in Charge Blake of the Dallas Office telephoned and ~
stated that present information concerning the location and ap- 4
prehension of Floyd tends to indicate that a telephone call will ©
be placed this moming to Floyd at Fort Worth, Texas, the call B
emanating from Oklahoma City; that he has been in constent touch 6
with Brantley and that all circuits are to be entirely clear; ' <
that arrangemente have been made with the appropriate officials -
to immediately secure the name and address of the place in Fort "
Torth where Floyd is alleged to be hiding out ae well as the name £
end address of the sender of the call. He believes that this call &
should materialize at 10 A, M. DPalles time, which would be 11 o'clock
our time. I requested him to immediately advise us by telephone 2
if they are mcceasmmtoadvieeusbytelegraphifthe call
does not materielise.
¢ 9.
Respectfully, ' — ¥
. ) v |
L9 —
nhyp
~J-
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the time of the Dade Park Races at Evans-
.Van Rae owns several race horses .
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Letter of R.B.Nathan, Kansas City, Mo, dated
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Inqﬁiry m‘ m'de b; lsent st the ctttooa of the ‘InAfass -
1t was found from their. recordl thet Bo peFson by the mo

.or mr a4 I_hu s tolephono_’uetod

Agont ntqruuod ltr. o.c.coom. hnascr or tho llccurty

m. u to thothar or not & person by the name of Van Roe had ever been rogutorea
1 at that hotel, He advised Agent that they had nevér had & guest by ‘the asme of Van
Roe; bBut fram August 12, 1952 to SBeptemder 9,1932, & Mr, A,E,Ven Ras was a guest -
et their hotel, and that when this Mr.Van Bae left, hé owed praotically $20,00: -mh
stil) remains unpaid, MNr, Coogan stated o Agent N\nt Mr,Ven Rae gave. Ais howe u-
dress et that tims as 3&15 8t.Louls Avenue; St,Louis, Mo,/ and that he 'honand e
Van Ras was a gambler ‘and an owner of race hormes. :
Evanmno was 1n progrou during pu.rt of Lusust and Boptcnhor ct 1952 anﬂ that Vap

That the Dade Park meot at
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Raee hed four or aix borses entored 1n that mot. anﬂ that was tho
reason for him being in Bvansville, Mr, Coozan stated that they :
have been unable to locate Mr, Van Rae but understood thatduring °':
~ the meet at Dade Perk 1n 1933 Vm Bao .tayec at the Vendome Botol“
. 1n Evensville, = o~ 2 !

_." ' lﬁr.charlos J’. Sholz, wner and mnhgor of ﬂn deome Hotol,
Evanaville, wae interviewed by dgent and Re deteormined fram bis re-
cords that they had a guest registered there in 1933 by the~ name ot "
A.E,Van Rae from August 14, £ September 9, which las during tha
Dade Park meet, He had tw rooms, ons of which wes ocoupiea by a
woman, Agent was not eble to £ind anyone at the Vendame Hotel who. PR
oould give any definite infarmation regarding Van Rae exsept that odb= & -
tained from the records: The records did show that he maﬂe o l.ong e T
dlstanee eana during his ;tay at the Vendm in’ 1933. :
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DIRECTOR
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Basyington, B. €.

July 26, 1934

MEMORANDUW FOR MR. COFFEY

In eccordance with the suggestion made in your
aemorandum dated July 19, 1934, making reference to the
letter from the Kansas City office, dated July 12, 1934,
concerning flatent fingerprints which can possibly be de-
veloped from beer bottles now in the possession of the
Kansas City office which were recovered from the home of
Vernon C.Dililler, deceased, you should give some specilal
instructions to Special Agent W. E. Uiller of the Ksnsas
City office who 18 presently attending the ten day labora-
tory course, with regard to the preservation of the finger-
print evidence by spraying the bottles with coatings of
fixatif.

A letter is being directed to the Kanpas City

office adviging that office of the procedure to be rollowed
in the disposidion of this evidence,

Very truly yours,

M
E. A Tamm.
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spﬂlal sgent in Vharge,
Kensas City, Missourt. -

co !nrthorrarerenco nnutomxnmumn. !936. i
mmcticn with the case antitled Vernad C. Xiller [Deceased), !'nglt!n. ‘
.ot al} Conspiracy to Deliver Yeloral Iriscner, with particular regard to *Iho
 latent fingerprinte appearing da hear bottles shich haye been rotained sn: .- f" y
* evidence in your office, Special Agent W. E. Miller of your effice sho - .7

recently earpletsd t'.e truining course at the Divisica Leboratory was
given epocific inatructions in the Tixing of latent fingerpriats mm
developed with powder, and it is belleved he will de adle to make an uﬂeqnnto
sxminaticn of the evidents and detcrmins whether 1t is adviamsble to attqupt .
t0 permanently fix the latent prints eppearing therecn., Speclal agent ... -
Niller 1s also qualified to sc £ix the latent primts if he bolieves. | RO A
practicable., This fixing process is usually accamplished by spraying -
a fine miot of 1light, fast-drying shollae over the material upan whieh"
the latent prints heve been developed. A muxber of ¢oats are msceasary . _ _
ip order to get & sufficiently intact cover and $% 48 izportent $hat each - PRSI
‘eoat De permitted o 4ry thorcughly before enother is applied, mM.lu‘

is trensparent, of earse, ' In ocnnection with guch fixing processes 4% - ..
aust be Temembered that the sharpoess and general clarity of the ﬁmrpmu .
are pecessarily &iwmadncd- 'lo_ ocmb oxtcnt by e -ppuuum d’ the nntit. S

WA L‘ﬂ

f"" .l 8 193‘ :*"

A SR of 1}.\E"'nsmo«.
o oLo °1I..EH1 of JUSTKE

‘
%
1
B
A
WX
s
1
3
|'n
3
#
.,d
¥ A'!

-\"b\},; * “fx:‘ !-’;e‘tgq .x ":.

L AP R s P




\ 1 Charge, -
Kanscs 5‘:“;: lhnu-i.o s

-mmc.%
RICHARD TALLMAR

O

L5

s T ,:_.;‘-_h. T W
i

,
£
.
.
uy
,
N
-

e hmwhmhtbobhum'o m.-m.;a.m
Toaewke 1 tn.fomu.on relative to the)prosecutions arfsing sut @f the = .. . "
above entitled case, bota Yederal and State, you ere instracted
. T to sdvies the Diviaion what sotion has hnn tuhnbythelhto e
o . suthorities at Kansas City, fssourl, with respect to h-in‘:l.u_ et
o . mdor tndictunt i oonnoct!.on t!.th thll utw. SIS ULSY G
e Tt . ,'- mmuo:mmmmmtmtmm-w
wgi,r.mon:mn 1933‘nmthormmntt o
o “. - First Assistant Propscutor Michael Olcarn £iled a complasad
"~ 7 before louis 7, Hasuch, Justice ef the Pesce ewm
Franced-Mash, Berdert AllernFarmer and Mrs, Eatier
. with sarder in the £irst degree. The Division files do not
reflect that any furiher mmutln aot!.on m bm hhn :

; by the Outc uthorlthao
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st Agwt. 1o s,
..'!oﬁ' '.'m. e

- A s VERNON C, MILLER, with alieses, (Deceased)) -
St T BICHARD TALUMANCGALATAS, -m::iuu N R
e Pesdttvg Lod2l W‘?{g‘m 1 00r

. o¥WIOID, with alisses ve, I, :

Special Agent T, K. Tracy, deted New York City,
Decesbar §, 1933, wheroin 1% 15 noted that proses
boen ¢ od in the dlistrict of New Jersey _ o
Irwin R} Eilvers, and in the southern dlstrict of New Jork - =
against Chelt and Horman forenstein in comestion with - ..~ .-

the above oak matter, ‘
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_ Dear Mim

'utl.u.

RERRD " N
M’. 1
l;-dnlcnthm '
Kansas City, Biassouri, . =

c:

EE: VIFRE0N Gy WILLER, with aliases, (Decessed)s
MICEARD TALLEAR: AS, with aliases, Pugitive,
1,00 12015 GRANLES ARTHOR *PRITTT DOX® FLOTD,
COBSPMIRACT 70 DRLIVER FEDSKsL PRISONER, .

_ Reference 1s made 40 page J of e
Ageat ¥, 7, Traisor 4ated Kansas CiYy,
vhereis it £» noted Shat Bpecial Agents A, K, Madersm
Rathan odtained infermtica fros es informmat, e

dtsclosed to the Division snd who advised that
Tea Carney (posaidly Kearneg), & widely

within ¢ veral weoks sfter the mass.ore,
looated at er fhrough the Jefferesn Not:)
the report sets forth that the informsat holds s respoesidls posi~
tion in Hot Springs, Arkansis,

| Ib 19 suggested that the 1deatity of Wis faforment %o
furalmhed S the Speclsl Aguat {s Charge at Littls Bock, Arkaases,

with a viev %0 heviag hia re-laterviensd with respect $0 the shere

abouts of subject Galates, ifnagmuch a» the feforsaticn furnished by

‘Bim at that time Anp slnce been eorrotorated by subsecueat javesti-
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s vesmon ¢ Jrisrs, v - ataoes, (bossnnd)y
MR TaLuY Gl Gmm. vith alisses, Pugh
1,0, #1201; CHARIES ARTHUR SPRETTX p&. _
with slisses, Pugitive 100. m,‘, wale . -
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froa Special
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J .~ informetion set forth in the third paragraph on page” four,” The
L dates of June 16tk and H‘th, ‘1933, are of partlcular mterest :
'+ 77 in eonpection with the case entitled VERNOR . lE[LIxR.\rith nlims

special Lgent m Charge »
St Paul Hinnesota. v :

"‘ e

Re' ALVIN KA.RPIS, ,with aliasu, .0. lele.
LRTHUR R. BAYKiR, Iith n;iaau, o :
o°o#121°' BT AL i ‘
Edward George Bremr

'Hall under. date of February 6, 1934, setting forth 1n1‘qmtionu_..
- obteined from afconfidential 1nrormnt ‘ag &' resylt of an interview %3
had by Specisl Agent R. L. Nalie, with onme "Tip Miller, wealthy
reaident of the St. Paul Hotel.

ra o

oo ot “i oopy or this Do rendni 1s be:lng rurnlahei B
SR ths Kansas c1ty and chicago Division Offices, 1o view of - the . -

* (De

1’#0 1
4’ :'~'-~2.-.4 s B e g Y T

' ' RS ¢ - is notad 11" the nomomnlum or 3peoia11‘,
I Asent Hall on page tive that a daily contact will be maintained with
".-;": .. the ‘informant who is eonsidered 'a valuable source of Anfomtiona RS
s W It 48 suggested that this 1nromnt again be conitacted: for the purpou
“ ','_A"' of obtaining additional 1ni'ormtion ooncerning mmbm or tho Ba.rhr-

Eollyhook Inn Ihioh 13 md ,by J'aok
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( ﬁ ' My, NATRAN cecereers

JOHN EDGAR HOOVER . Mr. TOISON coravessnr
ADIRECTOR .

N ' Mr. CleRe.cevuerroses

;" Bitsion of Juesigetion . s
M. 8. Bepurtment of Jrustice

Mr. CO“BV S
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Bnhﬂm @- a ' :,-, EdWaris. —ee—-
July 28, 1934.
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MEMORANDU FOR_THE, DIRECTOR

I called ¥y, Soucy
regarding the lead on Pretty Boy

oyd down in] Freehold, Hew J and -&
we want this to receive immediate and vigorous attention. Mr. Soucy advised

thet four men are going down with him now, I told Mr, Soucy to handle this
very carefully and avoid all publicity, of couree.

I also told Mr. Soucy
to talte no chances but if he could knock off Floyd, it would be & fine thing.
Mr. Soucy advised that Agents Sam Hardy, Tom Tracy, Jack Keating and George
Starr were going with him. I told Mr, §

oucy to remember that Keeting is blind
and can't see more than three feet; that he should be careful where he placed
him, : '

advised him tHat we had his

e i
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~ Bpecial Agent in m.
, Hevw !ork, let !ork. y

. hmnﬁmmtmmd .
" Kansas City assacre osse relating to efforts to apprehend
. Flayd in Preebold, Wev Jersey, fir. Boucy scvised Nr, Team of the mms.-on' ey
ttat Bpecial Agent Jo J, Kesting hed Deen choben to participate with: . = .
‘ether Agents in conteuplatad Lavestigetion in Freebold, sbich tmup- g o
uon -.u;ht mouihu & raid npon mn.h ducr!.bod pn-.uu S

Sscsuse of ueat !onl.u'a Moeu.u wuht. it 1 hncud' e
t.hatheunotuhpudtwwmrldmnmmmmbmm ‘ ;
inctructed to advice the supervisors in ysur office to exsroise the . ' - _‘< S
uimczt discretion and saution ia selecting agents for ssrigmments of . .
this kind, The ehbosing of Agent Keating for this partioular munnt
| T displ.q of very poor Juigaeut, Under mo eircusstances should ucnt Be T

munz -sdn udp-ﬂ s t-mu.m.m o: mu qm.f g
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fo g ‘ r. Nathan ....... ”
.(4' Mr. Nath

M. ToIBOoN v eateess
Mr, Clegg....c. —eev.-.

.- @. . nf 3 . . . './ Mr. Raughman.......
3L 8. Beparhment of Justice -

1331 Firet Nat'l. Bank Plag.,

Bl Paso, Texas,
PERSONAL AND m%m

July 18, 1834,
Mr. J. Bdgar Hoover,
Director,
Divieion of Investigation,
U.S.Department of Justice,

Washington, D. C, _ o Ry e/ AY
b /

S”_’;'"ﬁ m\ .
Receipt is aokn’otlodged of your perscnal and confidential
lotter dated July 0, 1934 with its enclosures concerning certain
allegations made by Ma joryMeans of thelMissouri State Highway Patrol
as to irrsgularities on the part of Division persommel, I have reaéd

the enclosures carefully and have to report as follows concerning
the contacts made by Major Means with the Oklahoma City office:

Dear S8ir:

You will realize that @ number of months have elapsed since
the cccurrsnoces and that at that time I waa heavily bdurdened with the
Urschel kidnaping case and my recollection as to the incidents men-
tioned may not be entirely elear,

Aocording to my recollection, however, my first contact with
Ma jor Means was at Oklahama City im October, 1933, during the trial
of the Urschel kidnapers. I recall that Major Means acoumpanied by
one ¢r two of his men came into the Divisian office and ¥ajur Means -
stated that he had been asaigned specoifiocally to the capture of Charles
Arthur ("Pretty Boy")°Floyd and that he and hie men had coms to Okla-
hama for that specific purpose and were t© remain on the job until it
was accomplished. :Major Neans requested that ons or more agents de
assigned to work with him exclusively on the Floyd matter and I advis-
ed him tbhat such action on my part was impossible but that we would
render such aid as practiocable.
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Ho then atated that he was going to Hot Springs, Arkansas, and
wanted an agent to work with him over thers, I told him, according to
my best recollection, that I could not assign an agent for that purpose
but I would give him a letter to Agent Chipman, resident agent at Little
Rock, who would oooperate with him insofar as possible and insofar as
his other duties would permit., I 414 give Major Means a letter to Agent
Chipman introducing Meane and instrueting Chipman to render all the
assistance possible. I afterwards ascertained that shile Means and his
associates were at Hot Springs they were never able to contact Agent
Chipman who was on a road trip in the northeastern part of Arkansas and
I bad not instructed Agent Chimman to proceed to Hot Springs for the pur-
pose of oontacting Means,

T will frankly state that I 414 not like Means*® attitude at the
beginning as he eppeared to be somewhat miffed when I told him I could
not assign agents to work with him on that specifiec caso, es he sesmed
to think we should drop everything in order to assist him,

4s I recall it, I 414 pot hear anything more from Means for
some weeks when, as I now recall, I received a telegram from him from
Fort Smith requesting that I send an agent there immediately. I do not
remember the exact wording of this telegrem bdut presums it is to be
found in the files of the Oklahoma City office relative to the Eamme
case, Agent J.J.Perkins happened to be in Fort Smith, or vieinity, at
the time, or shortly thereafter, and in eoms way contacted Means and his
men., I do nmot kpow at this time whether i+t us on my instructions or
acoidental.

I &0 recall that Perkins afterwards advised mo that Means and
some of hies men were at Fort Smith on the Floyd case and that Means had
planted one of his men undercover ip same joint and, eccordirg to my
recollection, Perkins stated that this undercover operative of Means
was lying up with one of the women associates of Floyd or some of his
connections. I know that Perkins did repor:s to me verbally about assist-
ing Means and his men in watching the house where Floyd was suppoud to
call over a period of a week or ten days,

I also recall that Agent T, M. Birch and same other agent,
possibly Perkins or Accountant Stevens, contacted Meens or same of his
mon at Fort Smith and I believe at Muskogee, Oklahoma, Anyhow, I recall

that the egents, acting on informetiom furnished them by Means end wark-
ing with some stool pigeon whom he ‘had employed, made all preparaticne
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to conduct a raid from Muskogee, Oklahama, to a point nsar Sallisaw, Ok-
lahama, the hame meighborhood of Floyd, this informant of Means having
stated he would put Floyd on the spot on a oertain night, Agent Birch
and the other agent, or agents, together with sheriff's officers from
Muskogee, had concentrated there where they were to meet the informant at
8 o'clock at night, at which time he was to conduct them to the place,
they having previously sent him into the vicinity on the day before to
verify the presence of Floyd. However, on the night of the rendezvous
the informant failed to show up but came around the next day and reported
he had been eick and was unable to go,

I know that this affair disgruntled iAgent Birch very much -
because he had made a special trip from Fort Swmith, Arkansas, to Muskogee,
Oklehana, on Means® urging and, although I do not Jmow whether Birch said -
anything to Means eabout ite having been a wild gooss chaas, I 4o not
think I would bdlame him, under the ¢ircumstanses, if ba 414 say so.

This informant to whom I have just referred, or some other informant
employed by Means, complained to Agent Bireh that Means had not paid

him anything for his serviees. I am sure that Agent Birch will remember
all the details of this transaction, .

With respect to the alleged intoxisation of a Division agent at
Port Smith during the pericd referred to by Means, or at any other poriod, '
I have never heard any such report fram any other source, o -

With regard to Major Means' csamplaint tlhat the ects of Divisien
agents at Fort Omith exposed his undercover connections there and render-
sd useless his efforts, 1 would say, offhand, froam my knowledge of the
situation at Port Smith, that it was prodbably membars of the mriﬂ"l
foree or the police department sho caused the expose. 1 do kmow that -
oither Agent T.M,Birch or Agent J.J.Psrkins reported to ms verbdbally that
the chief of police at Fort Smith at that time when it was belisved that
Floyd was in or frequenting Port Smith, bad ¢alled his men in and instruot-
ed them that neither the City of Port Smith mor the State of Arkansas held
any warrante for or eomplaints against Pretty Boy Floyd; that it had been
reported that he was in the ¢ity or coming there frequently and that if =
any of the membars of the Fort Smith police department arrested or attempt-
ed to arreat Pretty Boy Floyd they would 4o so at thair om r:lslr and

without his baoking.

With further regard to Means' allegations that Divieion agents
oxposed his operations in Fort Smith, I will state that neither Agent
Perkins, Agent Bireh, or any other agent under my dire¢t supervision
was working undercovsr at Fort Smith but were there on a number of {n-
veatigations which were being conducted openly and above board,
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I tbink, on the whole, that Major Means is mostly disgruntled
with the Division on account of my actions in not sesing fit to assiga
a couple of agents to work speoifically and exolusively with him on the
Floyd case, and for which action I have no apologies to offer. He can -
not say that Division agents 41id not work with him beceuse I kmow that
Agent Perkins devoted a comsiderable portion of his time for a week or
ton days to the matter in which Noans was most interested, and I Imow that
Agent Birch also devoted consideresble ettention to assisting him at Port
Smith, Muskogee and vieinity. 1 think perhaps Means has complained to
S.4.C. Comroy that I would not belp him and it is noted in the letter
from ¥r. Brantley of the Oklahcma City offies to you, July 3, 1934, pege
two, paragraph three, that according to Agent Birch, Kajor Means cuamplain-
od to him that Conroy had endeavored to get all the information possible
from Neans but would not, in turn, furnish Means with all the information

he had.

Referring to the letter written by Means to the Eansas City office,
dated November 8, 19833, first paraegraph thereof, wherein he reports cer-
tain information concerning Wilbur Underhill, I will state that the Okla.
homa City office was in possesaion of that ormation at all timss and
had verified the purohase by Underhill of thefFord V-8 Four-door sedan,
Oklahoma license §#344 251, and we had been chasing this car up until the
~"night we killed Underhill at which time we took possession of the ear,

Meoans' assertion that he saw a Department of Justiece agent on the
spot watching the Cottnsr girl's home ie either a wilful misstatement or
a mistake because, so far as I know, ve pever had the Oottnsr place under .
specific observation,

The main troudle with ir. Means, in my opiniom, is that his
vanity has been hurt by the fact that he could not arrange for the
assignment of Division agents to work with him and, perhaps, under his

direction.

Very truly yours,

R. H, 001"111.
Bpecialjgent in Charge.

RHC:bg
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gularities on the part of Division Aﬁ(’f’iﬁ Ta by Haj "
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Shortly after I assumed gharge or the
ision Office in Beptember, 1933, Lewis M.\Means called @ -
Office and made himself known to me. Incidentally, 1t might be moted that
Mr. Means is a Ceptein of the Missouri Btate Highway Patrol rethexr than -
& Major. The title of Major is one that he has in the Missouwri National
Guard., 4t the time of my meeting with Ceptain Means, he informed me in
a highly confidential manner that he had been assigned by the Governor
of Missouri to the sole task of apprehending Charles Arthur *Pretty Boy"

O Floyd, Apparently, be has informed numerous other persons of his task in
the eame manner.

The cause of the assignment of Captein Means to ¢
specific task was the deathe, &5 I reocall of S8arg coth and theySheriff
of Columbia, Missouri, The details regarding sams ‘somewhet vague to
me at the present time except that Floyd and Adem{Richetii are reputed

to have been the murderers. It seems that Floyd and Richetti, as supposed,
rob‘ned the bank in Missouri and to have been making their getawny. While
passing through Columbia, two men were stopped by SergeantBooth and the
Sheriff at shich tims Floyd end Richetti are alleged to have killed tham,
Captain Meens has 4iscussed in the past, the evidence he has seoured in .
connection with the murders. The evidence is guite weak, in my opinion,
notwithstanding the fact that Captain Means appears to believe that he has
a good case, On the other hand, of course, 1 realize that any evidence
egainst guch deaperados would tend to have a jury render a verdict of guilty.

Insofar as my personal relations with Captain keans are
concerned, I bave always ecooperated with him when same was within the
best interest of the Divislon. It ie¢ my understanding that my predecessor
st Kensag City, Special Agent in Charge B, E. Vetterli, has followed the
same course, After I knew Ceptaein Means detter, however, I becams ekeptical
of his sincerity ani, maturally, 4id not place a great deal of confidence
in him, It ie my opinion that he is highly secretive, temperemental, and
has a tendency to seek information of Division employees without reciprocat-
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. Insofar es the incident at Ft, 8nith is concerned, 1
distinctly rocall receiving soms information from en outside source to .
the effect that Oaptain Meen s hed been making statements which indiocat-
ed that he, Captain Means, would have captured Floyd et Ft. Smith, Ark-
ansas, during October bad it not have been for the activities of Bpecial
Agent J. J. Perkine of the Oklshoma City Office. 4t the very firet op-
portunity, I had Ceptain Means call at the office at mhich time I re-
quested him to give me detalled information regarding saeme. He was high-
ly evasive and would give me no direct answers., I became insistent and
informed Captain Means that it was his duty as an officer to report to
me any irregularities om the part of sny agents of this Division. I
told him very bluntly that indiscressions or irregularities on the part
of any agents of this .service would not be tolerated and that the Divi-
sion ghould be placed in & position where it ocould correct any of the
mistekes of its employees, It may be noted, however, that Captain Means
at no time even intimated that Agent Perkins hed indulged in any personal
indiscreasion, He just irntimaeted that lgent Perkina hed not handled
his investigation properly,

During the conference Iith Ceptain Meens, he intimated
that Agent Perkine hed gone into Pt, Smith, Arkansas, and had informed
local officials that he was looking for Floyd. I then informed Captain
Means that during the early moming of October 20, 1933, while passing
through ¥+, Smith, -Arkensas, by sautomobils from a point in Okleboma,
that I had taelked to Agent Perkins while eating breakfast, I related to
Captain Mcens what Agent Perkins hed told me which was &s follows: It
appears that Agent Perkins hsd arrived et Ft. Snith, Arkansas, on gener-
al essignrent, Immedistely after his arrival, be called at the Sheriff’s
office, Police Department, U, 8, Marshall's office, and United States
Attorney's office and advised these people that he was in the city and
available to perfarm any work which might be referred fo the Division,
That evening & matber of the local Police Department celled at Agent
Perkins® room at the Ward Hotel and informed Agent Perkins that the Chief
of Police at Ft. Smith, Arkansas, had {ssued instructions to his men to
the effect that any man who should endeavor to epprehend ¥loyd,would be
doing 80 on his own responsibility in view of the fact that there were
no warrants outstanding in F¢. Suith or in the State of Arkensas, Thie
police officer at that time gave Agent Perkins information which indicat-
od that Floyd and his wife and compeanions were in the city, Agent Perkins
immediately began an investigation to determine whether he might bring
about Floyd's spprehension. _

I explained to Ceptain Means during our conference that
Agent Perking was probably not aware of shat Captain Means and his men
were doing in Ft. Smith,end, therefore, any upset in Captain Means' plans which
might have come about through Agent Perkins' activities, could not have been
blamed on Agent Perkins, BShortly after this discussion the conference ended
at which tims Captain Meens stated that Agent Perkins probably was all right,
but that he, Captain Meens, juet 4id not like him personally,
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: About the only other information I have in my possession
regarding Captain Means' activities which would be of interest, relates to
a conversation which Captain Means had with Sheriff Thomss B.{Buh at
Kansas City during this past spring. It eppears that Captein Mesns
¢alled at the office of Sheriff Bash end asked for his eooperation, Dur-
ing the conversation, Cepteain Means, apparently, intimated that the mem-
bers of the Kansas City Office of the Division, including myself, were

- not trustworthy. BSheriff Bash became incensed and informed Ceptain Means
that under no eircumstances sould he cooperate with Captain Means and his
men unless the cooperation of the*Division Office at Eansas City was also
secured. He 'also told Captain Means in unmiatakable language, in his
characteristic way, that he 4id not appreciate his comments about me or
members of the Kansas City Office.in whom he had always placed great con~
fidence. . ,

Insofar es Colonel B, I-tCuteel. Superintendent of the
Btate Highway Patrol end other members of that orgenization are concern-
ed, I desire to advise that the relations between them and the Eesnsaas
City Office of the Division during my tenure as Speclal Agent in Charge
there, were always most cordial, .

Although I have met Captain Meane on a few other occasions
in addition %o those related above, there appears to have been nothing
specifically ococurred which would be of interest to the Division., In
" this letter, I have attempted to be as specific and as comprehensive as
ny memory will permit, In the event there is any further information
which the Division feels that I may bhave regarding this matter, I wuld
be pleased to receive further inquiry,

Very truly yours

B. E. CONROY,
Bpecial Agent in Charge.

EEC:B
67-21
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“\\ & Predicated upon information received by

£°°" gpectal Agent in Charge R. B. Hathan that Major Means had been

eriticizing the Division and its personnel, Mr. Rathan interviewed
Msjor Means, who stated upon interview that he kmew of an instance
where a Division Agent was in an intoxicated condition at Fort -
Smith, Arkensas; that he did not, however, consider this act
serious as he knew of other actions on the part of Agents of the
Division which were of more serious character; that on one occasion
an Agent of the Division in an intoxicated condition, approached .
a representative of the Missowri Btate Highway Patrol who wes ) .
performing an official investigstion in an wmdercover capacity .
in such a way that the identity of the State Highway Patrolman
was made known and his usefulness destroyed; that Division rep-
resentatives had declined or had failed to eooperate with him
on various occasions; that a Division Agent picked up a street-
walker in his automobile and within ten minutes informed her of
his jdentity and comnection; that a Division representative drove
alang a highway firing hie revolver indiscriminately at and
other objects along the highway; that a Divisicn Agent wag conducting
an investigation looking ‘towards the apprehension of Pretly Boy -

OFloyd at & point within the territory covered by a troop of the
Uissouri State Righway Patrol, but did not edvise the Highway -
Patrol of his presence, the Agent stating that he hed specific

instructions *to stey away from Means®. Lﬂﬂ AETS - 2/.(0&

Complete inquiry into thé above charges has HRe]
been made through Special Agents in Charge R. B, Nathan, R. H. .. -
GOIﬂ.n’ E, E. Gonroy, mt h’ﬂnﬂq and D. 'o OAUG l:- ‘:-.;-4 et :
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Summsrizing the results of the inguiries,
it appears with reference to the Major's first charge that
former Speclal Agent J. Massey Edgar was probably in an intoxi-
cated condition at Fort Smith, Arkensas. Lemar Higgine of the
- Fort Smith Police Department stated that he never saw Agent
Edgar sober in Fort Smith, Arkansas, A. F. Adams, Speclal
Agent of the Frisco Railroad Company, Fort Smith, states he
had seen Edgar takea drink, but he had not seen him drunk, It
appears that at a March term of court at Texarkana, Arkansas,
Deputy Sheriff George H. Smith, while attending Federal Court,
became involved in e drunken altercation with a negro resulting
in his arrest. Edgar was ocoupying a room adjoining Smith
and evidently was drinking with him, Edgar was not arrested,
but went to the police station and secured Smith's relesace.
This occurrence 1s generally known to law enforcement officials,
those interviewed stating that Edger was not drunk. It may de
noted with reference to Edgar, that a number of people inter-
viewed state that they never saw Edgar in an intoxicated comdi-
tion or saw him take & drink. -

With further reference to the first allega-
tion of Major Means, it appears that Agent J, J. Perkins attended
8 rodeo at Fort Smith, Arkansas during the month of June, 1934
at which time he publicly indulged in the drinking of beer.

.This doea not appear to be the incident to which Major Means
refera. Lemar Higgins of the Fort Smith Police Department says
he smelled alcohol on Agent Perking' breath on tkis oceasiom,
but Perkins was not under the influence of liquor. D. B. Jackson,
Special Officer of the Frisco Railroad Compeny, saw a man later
identified as Perkine at the rodeo drinking large quantities of -
beer, but states Perkins was not drunk., Chief of Police Hugh
Commors stetes that Perkins was present at the rodeo drinking
beer, but was not drunk, '

Major Means! reference to actione of & more
serious character than the purporteddrunkenness evidently refere to
what he believes to have dbeen lack of cooperation on the part of
representatives of the Ddvision, It appears that Major Meens?

!
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allegations in this respect are absolutely umfounded eince the
explanations of the running out of various leads, perticularly
in the Pretty Boy Floyd case, which are furnished by the five
agents in charge above enumerated are substantisted by the
“investigative reporis which were submitted a considerable time

prior to Major Means' charges. It appears from the investiga-
tive file that every cooperation has been extended to Major
Meens, On one occaslon during the development of the Urschel
kidnaping case at Oklahoma City, Special Agent in Charge Blake
declined to place agents exclusively upon the Floyd case with
Major Means, but agents were assigned to work with him from
time to time on the development of all specific leads furnished
by him. It further appears that Majar Means was somewhat dis-
gruntled at Mr. Conroy's refusal to place mail covers in various
parts of the United Stetes in the Floyd case and furnish the
information obtained therefrom directly to Major Means without
the Diviaion's taking any action thereupon.

© _ Major Means' third allegation, namely that
& Speclal Agent of the Division in an intoxicsted conditiom
disclosed the identity of a State Highway Patrolman working
in an uvndercover capacity appears unfounded in that all of the
persone interviewed during the course of the inquiries conducted
in this matter stated that they had ebsolutely mo imowledge of
any such occurrence, While it appears that Major Means had
various State Bighway Patrolmen with him in Fort Smith, Arkansas,
working on the Floyd case, the identity of these officers was
kmowm to city police in Fort Smith and various persoms inter-
viewed state that if there was any disclosure of the identity
of these officers to people outaide of law enforcement ranks,
4t undoubtedly came from the Fort Smith Police Department.

As pointed out befere, Majaor Means® alle-
gations of lack of fooperation on the part of this Division
eppear absolutely ounded in view of the apparent development
of verious leads furnished by Major Means in commection with
the Pretty Boy Floyd case as indicated by the investigative
file in this matter.
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¥ith reference to the allegation that a
Division Agent picked up & street-welker at Fort Smith, Arkansss
and disclosgd hig identity to her, interview was conducted with
one Billiefemes, a prostitute at Fort Smith, Arkansag, who
advisged t a month or so prior to the interview, she filled
an engagement at the Ward Hotel, at which time there was present

. & man of about 45-50 yeare.of age, welghing from 180-200 pounds,
who showed her a Colt.45 automatic pistol and revolver and told
her he was with the Governmment and was searching for Bill Harper.
Billie James reported this ocourremnce to the county officials,
Subsequently, this woman was interviewed by Agent Perkins, sho
was conducting inquiry to ascertain whether there had been any
violation of the Impersonation Statute. County officers were
with Agent Perkins at this time when he interviewed Billie
James. It appears, therefore, that this allegation of Major
Means as to improper conduct of Divislion Agents is ebsolutely
unfounded. I

All Division Agents interviewed in connection
with thie inquiry emphetically denled that they had ever driven
along promiscuously firing et birde or other objects, nor were
law enforcement officials or other people interviewed in this
matter able to furnish any information corroborating Majcr Means!
allegation, . :

-Ho corroboratien of Mesns' sllegation that a
Division Agent in conducting inquiries in the Pretty Boy Floyd
case in the territory covered by Major Means' troop of the Missouri
State Highway Patrol had specifie instructions *to stay away from
Means® could be obtained. This allegatian appears to me in the
1light of my informaticn of the method by which Divisiom investign-
tions are conducted to be ridiculous. _

CONCLUSIGR

With the exceptimm of the allegatioms of
drunkenness on the pert of a Division Agent at Fort Smith, Arkansas,
1t appears that Major Means' allegations are abeolutely unfounded.
From the nature of the information furnished by the people contacted,
it appears that former Agent J. Massey Edgar was intoxicated at
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Fort Smith, Arkansas, probably on several occasions. It is my
belief that Major Means is a temperamental, overbearing sort of
an individual who is prompted in these matters by a fear that

the Division may apprehend Pretty Boy Floyd without his assistance
or collabtoration, thus reflecting upon his ability since he has
been assigned by the Governar of Missouri to apprehend Floyd.
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Bigision of Infestigation ~
3 8. Bepariment of Fustive :

Post Office Box 515,
Saint_bPaul, Minnesota

\° |~ Julyio, Iox

Director,

Division of Inveatigation.
U. S. Department of Justioce,
Washington, D. C.

Dear Sir: hu(, 171938

Reference is mads to your letter if

in which you inquire concerning any 1n1'omtpo
e8sion of the writer relative to the attitude d
towards the Division,

On February 22, 1934, Hajor Means ¢
Louis Division office and nquestod the assistance of that
office in connection with investigations then being made by
the Liisaouri State Highway FPatrol looking towards the appre-
hension of Charles Arthur Floyd, He stated that be had been
conducting conasiderabls undercover investigation in this cass
and as a result had compiled a lot of valuable information.
Ho pstated that he had been in the Kansas City Division office
a fow days prior to his visit in St. Louis dut that he had not
given that office all of the information which he possassed
inasmich as he preferred to furnish same to the St. Louis Div~
ision office. Hes inquired if the St. Louls office would cause
mail covers to be placed on various parties throughout the
United States and conduct investigations, furnishing him with
the information obtained., He requested that the St. Louis
office pnot furnish the information thus developed to the other
Division offices. He was, of course, advissd that it would de
necessary to furnish all information obtained to the Diviasion
and to the other interested offices, Whon this was fully ex-
plained to him he agreed to furniah the information in hisa
posssasion, The writer then spent three or four hours going
over his file and making notes therefrom. 4 memorandum for
the file was prepared and the information later incorporated
into report form. Major Meens exhibited fingerprint cards for
Bsul 1ird and Rose\Baird, which he epperently bad obtained
from the Georgetown, Kentucky Police Department, and he requested
the writer to have prepared for him, additional copieas of the
photographs of these two women, as well as photographic eoplea
of their signatures as they sppeared on these fingerprint cards,




The writer then prepared and furnished him, by letter, with
soveral eoples of the photographs and gignatures as requested,
and as 1 now recall, these photographs were prepared through
the use of the fingerprint gamera in the St. Louis Division
office. While these fingerprint cards were in the possession
of the St. Louis office, photographic copies of same were obd=-
tained for the Divieion's files and the originals were then
returned to Major Mesns by letter,

Whan Major Means first called at the St. Louis
office, he was considerably perturbed at the apparent lack
of cooperation that he had received from "a Divieion office”
during his undercover investigation on the Floyd cass and he
indicated that he referred to ths Oklahoma City office. In
discussing this with him in an effort to obtain details, it
developed that the Oklahoma City office was in the midst of
the Urachel Case and after soms discussion with him relative
to the desire of the Division to cooperate fully with him, he |
agresd that he_had looked at the matter wrongly and that he |
had, in fact, always received good cooperation from the Division

" an@ that was the reason he had ealled to furnish the information |
to the St. Louls Division office., Hs nover 4id adviss the writer |
of the reason for or the incident reaponsible for his feeling
that he did not receive full ccoperation from the Oklahama City
office, but after this eonference, hs was appmntly entirely
friondly with the Division,

For the information of the Division, 1% might be
stated that Msjor Mesns is a very psculiar type, extremely
dirficult to get along with, anxious alweys $o odbtain all the .
glory personally in any one case, as will be noted from his
request that the St, Louis office furnish him with information
developed from the leads and mail ocovers in order that he could
personally run them out,

The above conatitutes all information in my possession
concerning the incidsnt referred to in your letter. I might state
further, however, that the relations between Majar Means smnd the -
St. Louis office were always friendly execept on this one parti-
cular dncident,

Very truly yours,

D. M. IADD
Ing.: M Special Agent in Chargs
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Bisision of JInfestigation O
" M 8. Bepurtment of Pooutice
P. 0. Box 1&76

Oklshoma City, Oklahoma
July 16, 193@

Ao

DB:!B Y,

Director,
Divieion of Investigation,
U. 8. Department of Justice, Personal and Confijential

Washipgton, D. C. ' / \
Dear Sir:

Reference is made to your letter of June £5, 1934 with
which you enclosed a copy of & letter addressed to you by Speoial
Agent in Charge Nathan of the Kansss City office, dated June 20,
1934, pertaining to allegations of misconduct on the pert of one
or more Diviajion Agents, sald allegations originating with the —

xuiesouri State Highway Patrol. o

AT

.

While the allegations of Major&l;um relative to mis-

conduct on the part of Agent Perkins are e and indefinite,

ESURTEE I beve oonducted some investigation at Fort Smith, Arkenseas and

a vicitity end slgned statements have been obteined from several
o persons and the seme are enclosed herewith,

I haye ¢obtained from Special Agent J. J,.fPerkins a
signed stetemert in which he sets forth his contaots with Major
Means, in which he denies any misconduct and also in which he
avers that he 4id not at any time 4o or say anything that inter-
fered with Means' investigation in the Floyd matter at Fort Smith
or elsewhere. The records of this office show that Agent Perkins
waes in Fort Smith, Arkanauon:‘unenmdm, 1934 and that on
June 13th he left Fort Smith qn route to thio orﬂoo.

With reference to tlu statmnt ndo by Pilligrtames, &
prostitute at Fort Smith, to the effect lehat some man with whom
f she had o date in the Ward Hotel at JFort 8mith hed informed her _
'’/  that he was with the Covernment and was there to kill BilliBerper,
/ﬂ-‘ { hgent Perkins advised me that this matter was drought to his
‘ h attention by Bill Barper and by Deputy Sheriff George Smith of
' Fort Smith and that he made some inquiries in an effort to determine

whetber there were sufficient facts upon whieh to redioate an
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investigation and to determine whether there had been a violation
of the Impersonation statutes., He states that he interviewed
peraons at the hotel and also Billie James, in the presence of
George Smith, and that she was unable to desaignate the room in
which this person was at the time; that he made ingquirjes of the
bell boys and others and learned that there wes a man by the name
of Rorman Trust, a tire salesman of Oklahome City, in & room et
the Ward Hotel at or about the time Billie James was supposed to
have been there, but that Trust is well known to the Ward Hotel
officials, is frequently a guest there and is considered e
responsible person. Billle James is an unreliable fndividual and
Agent Perkins*' inquiries failed to disclose that any person hed
represented himself as being with the Government,

I have obtained signed statements from Special Agents
K. D, Deaderiek, T. M. Biroeh and G. A, Stevens relative to their
contaota with Major Means,

It will be observed that certain persons have made the
statement that Speclal Agent J. llauey[e.dm, formerly of this
office and who formerly 41id some work im Fort Smith, while in that
oity indulged in drinking whiskey.

A8 indicated adove, the allegations of Major Means ere
not sufficliently specific, in my judgment, to conduot any intell-
igent investigation end in view of the fact that the investigation
thus far has failed to substantiate them, I recommend that he sgain
be interviewed and that he be required to set forth the full
particulars with respest to any Agents of this office oconcerning
whom he bas kmowledge of misconduct, and also that hie associetes
be interviewed slong the seame line. In the event he furnishes
these particulars, including the time and place and the names of the
personnel of this Division who are suilty of misconduct, we can then
conduct a proper investigation. o

Three copies of all statements and interviews concerning
this matter are being tramsmitted to the Division.

The interviews conduoted by me in Fort Smith and elsewhere
in this matter are as followa:
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Lamar Higgins, a member of the Fort Snith Police Department,
was interviewed and atated he knows Agent Perkins, has met Agent Birch
and knew Agent J. Maesey Edgar while he was working in Fort Smith. He
stated tint he recalls meeting Perkins Jast Fall when Perkins was here on.
same ifivestigation of the Floyd matter, dut that he had no eontact with I
the Missourl State Police and 1s not aware of any investigation Perkins
might bhave conducted with any of its membdbers in the case. He stated that
at that time hs 414 not observe that Agent Perkins mas drunk or under the
influence of whiskey or in any:mamner engaged in misconduect.

He atated that a month or s ago when Agent Perkins was in Fort
Smith on some matter he saw him cne evening down town and Agent Perkins
had the odor of aleohol on kis dreath but he was not under the influence
of whiskey and it 414 not interfere with him in his cmversation or in
any other mamner. He stated he 414 not see Perkins take a drink nor 4id
he see him have liquor or any other el ccholic beverage ip his poasessaion.
He stated that Agent Perkins was not at work at the time. Higgins stated
that he has never seen Agent Birch take a drink nor has he ever amelt it
on his bdreath. He further stated that he had never heard of any of the
agents of this Division picking up any mrostitute or shooting indiserim-
inately or handling firearms indiscriminately..

As to Agent Edgar, Higgins said that during the time Edgar was
in Fort Smith he saw him several times in the evening aa he, Higgins, 1s
and has been for a long time doing night duty in the police department.
Ee stated that he néver saw Agent Rdgar sober and doea not know how he
would appear in that condition, as he was under the influence of liguor
on each and every occasion he came into contact with him. Hs said he
usually saw him in the evening around the ocounty jail or police department.

He related something he had heard about Agent Edgar and scme other
officers making a trip from Fort 8mith to Texarinpa, Arksnsas. 4 man by
the pame of Willie of the police department, amd a man dy the name of
Adams, a special agent of one of the railrceds, made the trip with Edgear
and have knowledge of and can relate what ¢ocurred. ‘

- am W & e = =W

K. W. Newman, clerk at the Ward Hotel at Fort Smith, was inter-
viewsd. Ha says that he knows Agents Perkins, Birch end Edgar, and has
seen them all around the hotel but pever observed any of them under the
influence of liquor, nor has he seen any of thean have whiskey in their
possession, and that their conduct at all times while they ware guests
of the hotel was exemplary.

A, ¥, Adams, Special Agent, Frisco Rallway, Fort Smith, has known
Agonts Hollis, Franklin, Frank Snith, Edgar and Perkins; knows of no mis-
conduct on the part of any of them; has seen Edgar take a drink but was




pot drunk, but doces not know that it ever interfered with his work in
any mapner., He has been with Edgar in c¢circumstancea and on investiga-
tions where it was advisable and the better part of wisdom that he 4id
tals a 4ripk.

D. B, Jackson, Special Officer with the Frisco Bailway, stationed
at Fort Smith, saye that all of his experiences with the agents of the
Diviesion kave been agreeable anl he knows of no misconrduct on the part of
any of them except possibly what hs saw on the part of Mr, Perkins at a
rodeo in June, 1034, at Fort Smith, which might be interpreted or comn-
strued as such. Mr. Jackeon says he wae attending the rodec and saw s
group of men there practically none of whom he knows. Mr. Jackson was
with Mr. Willis and Mr, Higgins of the Fort Smith Police Department.

One of these men in the group referred to appeared to be having a particu-
larly good time and waeg drinking beer, large quantities of it. Mr. Jack-
son states timat in his judgment this man was not drunk. Mr, Jackson was
seated immediately behind this man and seversal othars and they persisted
in etanding, which obstructed his view, and this is the thing that atiracted
his attention to him. He states that he waps not cursing or swearing or
btrandishing any weapons or engaging in any reprehensidle conduct but that
his actions were such as to attract attention. He said that he 4id not

at the time know who the man was but later learned that it was Mr. Perkins
of our service. Hs states that he has never had any official eontacts with
Mr, Perkins. :

United States Marshall Cooper Hudspeth, Fort S8mith, Arkansas, was
interviewed on July 8, 1934. He stated that during bhis seven and ons-half
years in the Marshall's office he hnd met many of the Division's agents, )
including Agents F. 8. fmith, Butterworth, Hollis, Frapklin, Birch, Perkins,
Xdgar, Chipman, Black and probably many others whose names he 1s unable to
recall. BHe stated that he had never observed any misconduct on the part of
apy of them, and to his Xmowledge none of them has indulged in d&rinking
liquor and he has never smelt any on their breath nor has he seen any of
them when they appeared to be under the influence of liquer.

ir, Hudspeth wolunteered the remarks that he has been in the Gov-
erument service approximately twenty years, that during tiat period of time
he has met representatives of practically every Govermment agency, apd that
it 18 & pleasure to him to state that he has nsver seen a finer bunch of
men than those in our personnsl and be is firmly convinced that our men
work harder thap any men in amy branch of the Government service.,
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Hs atated that there has never been any lack of co-operation de-
tween our service and his office and no information bas come to his atten-
tion of a lack of co-operation and if such were to be reported he would
not believe it, and that if 41t were found that our agents had fafled to °
co-operate with any state or city officers there would certainly be e
good reason on the part of our agente for failing to do so.

Ir. Budspeth remarked of hie omm volition that the city and
county officers at Fort S8mith, Arkansas, are not to be trusted and @at
he does not trust them in any matters handled by his office. He said
that he is unable to think of any member of thefFort Smith police fdepariment
who 4s reliable. BEe also stated that Police Officer D, M. Willis 1s &is-
honest and is absolutely unworthy of belief.

¥r., Hudspeth stated that he is not aware of any investigation
tiat was conducted in Fort Smith in the Fall of 1933 by Agent Perkins and
members of the Missouri State Eighway Patrol. Mr, Hudspeth stated that he
recalls that in Marech, 1034, Agent Birch was in Fort Smith c¢anducting some
investigation in an effort to determine whetber scme woman in the Bennett
Hotel was identical with an al leged companion of Charles Floyd. He stated
that Mr, Birch conferred with him about this matter; that one evening or
afternoon in his office in the Federal Building there waere present Jack
Pace, Constable at Fort S8mith, Agent Birch and himself and & man came in
and was introduced as Major Means of the Missouri Highway Patrol. He said
this was his first meeting with kesans, tiat Keasns indicated he was inter-
ested in capturing Floyd dnd that so far as he knows Birch gave him every
co~operation, and that if Means mekes the allegation that Birch failed to
do s0, he would not believe him. He stated that Birch was very enthmsi-
astic about this investigation and worked night and day on it. Ee stated
thet that was his firat and only contact with Means and that he has never
heard any complaint directly or indirectly fram Xeans as 1o lack of co-oper-

ation on the part of our agente.

Mr. Hudspeth was questioned specifically as to any kmowledge he
might have as to misconduct of Agents Bdgar or Perkins and he stated that
he has none. He paid he had never seen Edgar take a 4rink and has never
smolt whiskey on his breath and that the same applies to Agent Perkins.

He was questioned specifically as %0 any knowledge he might have either
directly or indirectly as to Agent Edgar's being intoxiocated at Texarkanma,
Arkansae, at any time and he said he had mone. Mr, Hudspeth stated that
‘he 1s a total abetainer and such is generally kmown and that he has no
patience with persons adrinking liquor and that he would certainly gladly
inform me if information had reached his ears that members of our person-

nel had been 4rinking whiskey.

Hudspeth atated that there was a grand jury at Texarkana, Arkansas,
on March éth and 7th, 1934. He produced records which show that D. M.
Willis, a member of the Fort Smith Police Department and George H. 8Smith,
a Deputy Sherift of Fort Smith, were subpoensed and drought before said
grand jury as witnesees.
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Mr. Hudspeth is & very intelligent men, has been in the Government
sorvic® for a long time and is highly regarded throughout the Weatern Dis-
triot of Arkansas and other places where he is known,

Mr. Theodore E. Burns, Deputy U. S. Marshall at Fort Smith, was
interviewsd and he stated that during his service in the Marshall's office
he hae met many agents of the Divisior including Agents F, 8, Smith, J. J.
Perkins, J. M. Edgar, H. E. Hollls, T. M. Birch, R. N. Butterworth, E. M.
Black and probably others whose nawes bhe is at this time unable to recall.
He stated that he considers owr personnel as men of the highest type,
that all of his experiences bave been pleasant and all have co-operated
with him eplendidly. BEe said tmt no information has reached his ears
es to lack of eo-operation by our agents with state enforcement officials,
Eo stated that he has no kmowledge, either directly or indirectly, of
misconduct on the part of any of our agents.

Hs was Qquestioned specifically as to whether he has any knowledge
of Agent BEdgar's being intoxicated at Texarksna or any other place at any
time and stated he had nons. He stated that George Smith, a Deputy Sher-
ife at Fort Smith, Arkansas, told him of an occurrence at Texarkana in
March, 1934, when Smith was subpoenaed there as a witness; that Smith
said a negro boy gave him some back talk and he had difficulty with him
and that he was arrested and put in jail down there. He stated that Smith
4id not tell him that Agept Edgar was 4runk and that he has no imowlsdge
of Edgar's deing drunk there or anywlere slse or under the influence of
whiskey . ,

He was questioned specifically as to whether he had ever seen
Agent Perkins under the influence of liquor, or whether anyons had re-
ported to hinm or information reached his ears that Perkins was drunk or
drinking, and bis answer was in the negative.

Chief of Folice, Hugh Connors, was interviewsd and stated that
he knows Agents F. 8. Smith, H. E. Hollis end probably others whose names
he cannot recall; that in all his contacts with them thare has been a
splendid apirit of co-operation displayed by our agents, that they have
conducted themselves as gentlemsn, that he has found work with then to be
pleasant and he has only the bdest things to say about them.

He was asked whother he has any information or knowledge of any
miscomduct on the part of our agents, end stated ta t the only report
that had reached his ears is that two of his men (he 414 pot recall the
pames) had told bim that Agent Perkins was present at a rodeo in June et
Fort Smith and tmt¢ Agent Perkine was drinking a great deal of beer. He

4id not say that these men reported that Agent Perkins was 4runk or even

-]




under the infiluence of any alcohol.

Ho was queationed epecifically as to whether be had any kmowledge
or information or reports of misconduct or drinking on the part of Agent
Edgar and he stated that he had pone and that he doss not even know Edgar
and probably would not recognize him if he were to walk into his office,
although Edgar might bave talled to him on more than ome occasion.

Ho was asked whother on any ceccasion any information had deen
brought to his attention to the effect that our agenta bald failed to
co-operate with membere of his force ar with members of any other state
enforcemsnt agency and he stated ‘that no such reports had ever ocme to
him,

- A e ., e B B

Chief of Detectives, Bob Willlamaon, of the Port Smith Police
Department, was interviewed along the same linss I interviewed Chief of
Police Connors. He spoke in the highest terms of all the agents he had
met and said their co-operation with him had been all that sould de de-
sired and that he has no oomplaint whatever to make.

Williamaon was Qquestioned specifically ae to any kmowledge or
information he has of misconduct on the part of our agents, and said tat
all of them had been gentlemen so far as he knows; that he 41d hear a
couple members of the force say that one of our sgents, whom he later
lesarnsd to be Mr. Perkins, attended a rodeo in June in Port Smith aml was
drinking & lot of beer and appeared to be having a good time tut that his
men 414 pot tell him that Agent Perkins was drunk or that his actiom at
the rodec were reprebensible or could de considered as misconduct.

~

The information to the effect that Agent EAgar might bave been
drunk at Texarkana, Arkansas, in March with Deputy Sheriff George H.
8nith when they were attending Federal Court, was obtained subsequent
to the interview with Smith. Gecrge H. 8nith was sgain interviewed anl
Questioned concerning this matter. He stated that on the ¢rip to Tex-
arimna in March he got drunk and that he had difficulty with a Fegro in
the Hotel Grim at Texarkana, that the police were c¢alled and he was locked
up, that dgent Edgar was not drunk and that Edgar 2 ter went down %0 the
Jail and effected his release. He gaid that he did mot touch upon this
in his first statement to me for the reason that it 414 mot concern igent
Bdgar particularly and that he 414 not feel that I would be interested in
knowing whether he, Smith, was drunk or sober. I told Suith that any
eonduct on his part, so long as it 4id not affect any of the personnel of
this Divieion, is not any of my affair and thet I was not interested in it..

L]
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Mr. C. I. Walker, 218 North "B" Strest, Fort Bmith, was inter-
viewed at his residence. He owns a houss in which the wife of Charles
Floyd Tormerly occupied a romm. I talked to Walksr same time last

Winter. Hes impresses me as being childish and senile. He ocould not recall
having ever talked to me, He said that he Iad talked to several Govermment
men but could not remember the pames of any of tham, nor could he describe
any of them. He stated, however, that all of his contacts with the Govern-
ment men had been of the fineat, tlat they had conducted themselves as
gontlemen and that he never met higher type men.

- e e, wm - e m - *

Sheriff John B, Williams, Fort Smith, was interviewed and stated
that he lmowe several agents of the Division, including F. 8. Smith, H.
E. Hollis, T. M. Biroch, J. J. Perkins, J. M. Edgar amd probably many others
whose namea he cannot recall at this time.

He was asked if he had any informaticn as to, or knowledge of
misconduet on the part of any of our agents. Be stated that he has nonpe.
He wans asked if it had ever come to his attention, either directly a in-
directly, that agonte of this Division had been known to indulge in darink-
ing whiskey or had been seen under the influence of liquer, and his answer
wap in the Degative. . . :

He was questionsd specifically as %o Agent Edgar and Agent Perkins
and stated that he had never heard of these men being drunk or drinking
and he certainly had never seen any of tham take a drink or when he was
under the influence of liquor.

Sheriff Williams was asked if ever on any occasion sgents of this
Division had failed properly to ¢o-operate with him or in anmy way had dis-
played a lack of co-operation, and stated that they bad mot. He was asked
whether any information had ever reached his ears to the effect that agents
of the Division had failed properly to co-oparate with othar enforcement
officials and he stated it had not. ,

At the end of the interview with Mr. Williams he stated that it
hag always been a pleasure to work with agemts of owr Division and that he
bas never oome into ocntact with a finer bunch of men anywhere,

Mxr, J. ¥. Budson, Assistant Manager of the Hotel Grim, Texarkana,
Texas, was interviewed and made search of his records and found that J. M.
Edgar and George H. Smith registered in said hotel on March 5, 1934 and
checked out March 7, 1934. Bmith was assigned to Room 810 and Edgar to
612. Nr. Hudson safd that he does not recall that anyone was arreated .in
the hotel but that Ray Yoacum at the time was house detective at the botel




AR AT
biAa R
39 3 L

s
[N

Ll:'g{:
TR

AR

and now oo the Texarksnpa police force and would recall the circumstances.
Mr, Hudson got in towh with Yoacum, who stated in an interview with me
that hé recalled the ocourrence of George H. Bmith being drunk in the hotel;
that Smith is a deputy sheriff in Fort Smith and was attending Pederal Court
here aml that he was in Room 610; that Smith sent ome of the Negro bellboys
over to & restaurant for some food, which was brought in dut Smith would
ot pay for it and became obstreperocus and he, Yoacum, was called, Yoa-
cun said he went to Smith's room and attempted to quiet Smith but he was
t00 drunk to reason with and the police of Texarkana, Texas, were called
and Smith was taken down to the station, but when it was learned who he

was he was not booked but was locked up for a short time; that Bigar was
not even in Smith's room at the time but somehow learned that Smith had
been locked up and went down to the station and t0ld the officers he

would take care of Smith and Smith was released about five ofclock in

the morning. Yoacum said that Edgar was not under the influence of

liquor and so far as he knows was not drinking anfd his conduct was that

of a gentleman at all times,

¥r. B. 0'Dwyer, Night Clerk st the Grim Hotel, stated that he
recalled the ovecurrence and the circumstances are the same as those
related by Yoacum, anéd that Edgar was not drunk and so far as he knows
was not drinking at all.

Mr. H., W, Btorey of the Police Department of Texarkana, Texas,
was interviewed and stated that he was called to the Grim Hotel in March, .
1934, apd got Smith and took him to jail but that he was not booked.
¥r. Storey said that Edgar later came down and was not 4drinking and was
not under the influence ¢« whiskey and his confuct was exsmplary.

J. D. ¥eCall, in charge of the police of Texarkama during the
night, corroborated the statement of lir. Storey with respect to Smith's
being arreated and Edgar's appearance at the station, and stated that
Edgar was not drunk and his conduot wes that of a gentleman.




Billie James, a prostitute formerly of the Bermett Hotel hut
Trecently run out of there and now stopping at the 8t. Charles Hotel,
was located and interviewed, I have geen many prostitutes in my time but
never have I seen one who pressnts & more disreputable appear .

bb has gold teeth, is emaciated and appears to be
One eye was black and blue, which she saild was cause
by a recent fight.

In the presence of Special dgent F. C. Culberson I questioned
her as t% any experiences she has ad iz whish any man has represented
himself to her as an agent of this Division or a representative of the
Governmant. She sajid that aane time ago, she was unable to fix the date,
although she said a month and then she said it was more than tat, ahe
was called to £il]l a date at the Ward Hotel ome night and went to a room
there the number of shich she could not remember., She sald there was
another girl along and there were two men. One of the men she described
es a "Spanish fellow™ and she 414 not know who he ia nor where hé came
from. The other she desorided as being a man forty-five to fifty years
of age weighing 180 to 200 pounds, 6* 1" %0 6' 8" ipn height, bald head,
sandy bair, fair complexion., She said both the men were drinking. The
o0lder man showed a Colt's 45 Automatic Pistol and a Colt's Revolver, blue
nteel with bone hendle. She said that this man, the larger o the two,
told her he was with the Govermmsnt, but 414 not exhibit any oredentials
of any kind, that he quastioned her about Bill Harper, who killed the mo-
torious cutlaw Ford Bradshaw the first of March, and he also asked her
whether she knew HRradshaw, to which she replsd she knew them both. This
man, she said, told her he had it in for Bill EHarper and was up here o
get him. She stated that she does not know his name, had npver seen him
boefore, and has never seen him since, but that he told her he was fram
St. Loufs. She said she reported this to the county offiocers anl that
sane time later an agent of theGovernment, sbs thinks his nams was Perkins,
interviewed her about it in campany with some sounty officers. She stated
that she remained with this man for two or three hours and went to bed
with him. She atated that she 4id not believe at the time he was an officer
and does not believe so now,

She was asked whoather she had ever been picked up by anyons who
represented himaelf to her as an agent of this Division or a representative
of the Govermment, and whether she had ridden with any such person in an
automobile, to which she replied she had not and that she does not know
any of the agents of this Division and has had no cmtact with any of them
with the exception possibly of Agent Perkins, who interviewed her as astated

above.
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Signed statemente which are transmitted herewith
wore obtained froam the following named perecns at Fort Smith,

Arkansas:
Lamer Higgins,
D. M, Willis,
Jack Pace,
George H. Bmith.
Enclta. '
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Oklehoma City, Okla.,
July 1, 1934.

STATEMENT OF SFECIAL AGENT TYLER M. BIRCH

On March 23, 1934, prior and subsequent thereto, 1 was working
cut of the Oklahoma City office on general assignments at Fort Smith, Ark.
and v}cinity.

About Priday March 23, 1934, I was approached by Constable
Jack Pace of Fort Smith while I waz in the United States Marshall's office
there. Pace showed to me & photograph of a woman end said it was hie infor~
mation that she was a companion of Charles Arthur *Pretty Boy" Floyd, snd
that at the time she was stopping at the Bennett Hotel in Fort Smith. He
did not furnish me the nome of the waman whoee photograph he had. Pace
said tbhat he knew the Division was seeking Floyd and asked the assistance
of agent in meking investigation to Qetermine if the waman &t the hotel wae
in fact the subject of the photograph he had. This information was commun~
icated to S.A.C. Brentley at Oklahama City, who imstructed me to conduct
investigation and determine the identity of the woman in question.

I spoke.to Mr. Cooper Hudspeth, U. S. Marshell at Fort Smith,
who is well scqQueinted there, and he told me that Bob Williames, & clerk &t
the Bennstt Hotel, is known to him and he is relieble and would aspsist agent.
I interviewed Bodb Williams at his residence and ahowed bim the photograph
of the waman which I had borrowed from Pace, and he ssid it was & g0od like-
ness of the woman who was stopping at the Bennett Hotel. o

At the time Pace contacted me he stated that the photograph
was that of Beulah Baird or Beard, and that she was supposed to be an asso-
ciate of Floyd. Eoe also stated that the pbotogreph of the waman had been
glven to him by a Major Means of the Missouri State Folice and that he ex-
pected to call Major Means, who at the time was samewhere in Missouri, em -
request that he coms to Fort Smith immediately, os Means also was assigned
by the State of Miassourl to apprehend Floyd.

At the time I interviewed Bodb Williems he stated thet the waman
at the Bemnett Hotel who resembled the photograpk I bad exhibited to him is
¥known to him es Billie Jemes, a prostitute, and that until recently she had
been in financial traits -, that she had obteined a sum of money and at the
time I talked to him she was supposed to have approximately $500.00 on de-
posit in one of the banks in Fort Smith. I made inquiry at all three danks
in Port Smith and failed to substantiate thet she had any mobey in either

of them.

U. 8. Marahall Cooper Hudspeth told me there was at the time
living at the Bennett Hotel a former U. S. Marshall by the name of R. L.
Cox, who is reliable and who now is a bailiff in U. S. Dietrioct Court at
Fort Smith, Hudspeth seid thet Cox is relisble and that he 6ould be can~-
tacted without fear of his revesling any information. Cox wes ¢alled into
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the office of Marchall Hudspeth and introduced to me. I asked him sboui
Billie James and he told me that he knew there was a woamen at the Hotel

by that name; that she was & prostitute, but that he hed no specific kmowl edge
of her and did not koow her eassociates.

The following dey I wes told by Constedble Pace that Major
Means hed errived in Fort Smith and that Means was esger to get in toush
with me.

Toe clerk at the Ward Hotel informed me that Mejor Meane, stop-
pin.g at the Goldman Hotel in Fort Smith, bad called me twice and requested
that I call him when I returned to the hotel. I was busily engaged on other
matters and did not call Major Means at the time. Subsequent to this, Mr.
Hudspeth, Cox end Constable Pace and I were in the U. 3. Marshall's office
et Fort Smith. This was about 7:30 on the evening of March R4, 1934, as
well as I can recollect, when two men oame in and introduced themselvea as
Kejor Meens and Mr. Massey or Massie of the Miasouri State Police, sand that
they were in Fort Smith to conduct an investigation i{n an effort to looate
Floyd. .

Means requested a private interview with me, which was granted,
end at which time he told me that he wap agaigned to apprehoend Floyd and that
he was working on the case to the exclusion of everything else. Means told
me that he had slways degpired to work with the agents of the Division bdut
had experienced same difficulty, end that his contacts with all of them had
pot been satisfactory, and stated that this difficulty was attributable to
the agents of the Division, in that they wented to get all the information
they could dbut did not wish to divulge what they possessed. The only nmmep
of any agente Mr. Means mentionsd at allwae that of Mr. Conroy of Kansas City.
The only thing he had to say about Mr. Conroy was that Mr. Conroy wanted to
get all the informstion that he could concerning Floyd but apparently 4id not
desire to furnish all that the Division had ebout him. Meaps did not &appear
to be bitter and the above was the only compleint of any nature that he made
in my presence or to me. Means t0ld me that he wanted to work with m» @ the
present setup in Fort Smith and requested that all information possessed by
me be disclosed to him. FProm the conversation with Means it appeared that
he was in possession of everything I hed in respest to the eetup in Fort
Snith and I 4id pot go into any diecussion of the thing with him and told
him that he had practically everything that I had. Means sald thet it wae
his intention to have his assoclate Massey obtein a roam at the Bennett Hotel
adjecent to the one occupied by the prostitute Billle James, end if poseidble
he and Massey would stae & party and get her drunk sc that they could get -
all the information from her as to the location of Floyd.

Leter in that same day, Cox told me that he had been in the
lobby of the Hotel and heard Billie Jamee talking end he inferred that scome-
one would call on her that night, March 24th. Means sew me again that day
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and told me of the information about the conversation between Billie James
and same person on the 'phone, which he very probably obtained from Jeock
Pace, and suggested that I procure & room et the Ward Hotel, which is located
across the street fram the Bennett Hotel so that I ecould observe the roam

in which the party was to be in progress at the Bennett Hotel that night.

I was stopping at the Ward Hotel and changed my rocm 80 &3 to be able to ob-
serve the room at the Bennett Hotel acrose the street. I telephonsd this
information to S.A.C. Brantley at Oklahama City and he instructsd Agents

K. D. Deaderick and Geo. A. Stevens to proceed to Fort Snith to assist in this
matter. Agents Deaderick and Stevens arrived in Fort Smith, I think, about
10:00 P.k. on March 24th and they too got rooms in the Ward Hotel, and we
took up the wetch from thet point to the room in the Bennett Hotel where
¥ajor Means and Massey end the two women were having a drinking party.

This party lasted until early in the morning of March £85th when a raid was
conducted on said rocm by the police of Port Smith. I did not kmow that a
raid was to be made, nor did Agents Deaderick or Stevens, to my knowledge.

I hed nothing whatever to do with it. After the reid I went to the police
station at Fort Smith. No one was arrested when the raid at the hotel was
made. At the police station I saw a man dy the name of Johneon of the State
Bureau of Criminal Identification of Oklahama. Fram the best I could learn,
some maubers of the State Bureau of Qklshoma had been in Shawnee anrd had
there picked up @ man and woman and learned that they bad a commection with
the woman Billie Jemes in tbe Bennett Hotel and immediately 'phoned the

Port Smith police to go thers and arrest the parties, as i1t was thought the
wanan in the hotel might be an assoclate of Floyd and that Floyd might be
with her. It later developed that the person who was supposed to cantact
Billie James at the Bennett Hotel was Charl es Yoruker, an Oklahoma outlew
who bas since been killed in the reilway yards at St. Louis, Missouri.
During the night of March 24th Means came to my room twice in the Ward Hotel.
The first time was about 11:00 o'clock. He was net drunk but had besn drink-
ing. Ho told Agents Deaderick, 3tevens and me that he had two gallona of
oorn whiskey in his roam at the Bennett Hotel and added, "If that ien't
snough to get that dbitch drunk I don't know what it will teke.” Ee egein
came after the raid and wost of his conversation on that ocoaeion was with
Er. Deaderick. He oame to the room again about ten o'clock on Sunday, March
£5th, at which time he stated that he felt certain that the woman Billie Jamnes
at the Bennett Hotel was not identioal with Beulah Baird, whose photograph

I hed then obtained from the Oklshoma City office, and Agents Stevens, Dead-
erick and myself were already convinced that Billie James was not identlcal
with Beulah Baird. Mezns said he was returning to Miasouri and he thanked
Agent Deaderick for the apaistance and co-gperation we had extended him,

I kmow that I d4id not do or say anything that interfered in any mamnnar with
any investigation that Meens was conducting and so far as I know he was Dot

orking on other angles of the case other than here mentiopmed. To
;nwll:gage, ﬁntn Deaderick and Stevens eertaiply did not do or say a.nyﬂing
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that interfered with enything Means or any other person wes doing on Rhis
matter.

At Fort Suwith I did not take any drink with Mms ‘or any other
peracn during the course of this investigation. I have never takéen & 4rink
with Means, nor auring the entire period fram the time Paco mentioned this
matter to me until ite conclusion on March BSth did I take & drink of whiskey
or any other alcoholic beverage. I 4id not see Agent Deaderick or Agent
Stevens take @ drink. I had no whiskey in my possession and so far as I know
Agents Deaderick end Stevens bad none. Means did not offer us any whiskey
and he 4id not take a drink io our presence. During e part of the time

Special Agent J. Massey Kdgar was in our rooms in oonnection with this matter -

and I 4id not see him take a drink and so far as I koow he took none.

During Sundey afternocn, March 26th, Agent Deaderick apd I -
went to see a men by the name of C. I. Walkser who lives in a rather bad sec-
tion of Fort Smith, as Marshall Hudspeth had told us thet Ruby Floyd, wife
of Charles Floyd, had at one time lived in e house in that neighborhood

owned by Walker. We talked to Walker a few minutes but he had no infomatic;n '

of any value to offer and the interview was concluded. I do not know ether
¥eans had sver talked to Walker as the matter was pot mentioned by eithe p
Walker, by Deaderick or by me.

- On Monday, March £6th, near the ¥ard Hotel I saw the woman
Billie James and talked to her for two or three minutes on the street. I
d1d not divulge to her my identity and eo far as I know she d4id not know
me then and does not know me now. I told her I understocd she hed a bdbig
party last pight and she replied that she had started one but that "the
damned cops broke 1t up.® I was going toward the garage and took her 4dowmn
the astreet for sbout three blocks in order to continue the comrersatiomwith
her. She asked me if I deaired to epend any money with her and I told her
I 4id not 2nd she said she had no time to waste on me and I let her off at the
garage door. I heve not spoken to the woman eince although I 4id see her
sane three or four days thereafter at Bill Ba.rper's place near Fort Smith.
I was with Agent Bdgar at the tims. The woman did not recognize memd I
~did not speak to her.

I have never made it a prectice t¢ shoot my pistol when I am
travelling along the road and can recall no occssion on which I have ever

indulged in such pastime.

The only circumstance that ever earose to my knowledge at
Fort Smith fram which there coculd be an inference that the officers felt
that agents of the Division were seeking any glory, ie as follows: 1 had
a National Motor Vehicle Theft Aot scase the subject of whish was supposed to

T e




-

be in Fort Smith. The car had been stolen in Arizona. I contacted the
Police Department end asked for their co-operation and was informed by the
Chief of Police Hugh Conners that the men was pot in.town &s the police

had been looking for him for severel months. The police were cool and 4id
not appear to want to assist me any. I located the subject and he volun-
tarily eccompanied me to the Sheriff's office. The man was turned ower to
the Jjailer. It was later learned that this subjeot had stolen a cer in
Fhoenix and had abendoned it at Gila Bend, Arizona. There was no prosesu=
tion in Federal court as there was no interstate transportation. I bheerd ...
later thet Deputy Sheriff Smith at Fort Smith told Ceptain Psavyhouse of
the Fort Smith poiice that 1 was trying to glorify myself and had exceeded
my authority in oausing this man to go to the Sheriff's office. I unler-
stood that the reason for this statcment was thet Deputy Sheriff Smith thaught
there might have been & $25.00 reward on the car and that they were sore
because they did not make the srrest. I heve mot heard of any other ocoa-
sions on which any of the officers there might have made similar statementes.

The occasion above referred to was the first ¢ime that I have
ever come in contact with Major Means ef the Kissourl Highway Police and I
have not eseen him since Sundey, March 25th in Fort Smith.

The foregoing is a true and coamplete statoment of my knowledge
of the contacts of Major Means with any agents of the Division in any matters.

Y Gorodf

M. BIRCH,
Bpecial Agent.
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL AGENT J. J. PERKINS

-~ - During the month of October, 1933, at Fort Smith, Arkansas,
I was assigned to conduct some investigation in an effort effect the appre-
hension of Charles Arthur Floyd. X was stopping at the Ward Hotel at Fort
8mith. During the course of this investigation, a man by the name of Means,
who said he was with the Missouri SBtate Highway Patrol, contacted me at my
room &% the hotel and asked for an interview with me, which was granted.
Be showed to me a letter of introduction from Mr. C. G. Bchenken, Adcting
Special Agent in Charge of the Oklahoma City office. Immediately after _
" he showed me this letter, Means, who stated that he was seeking the appre- '
hension of Floyd for the State of Missouri, complained in e gensral way
about the lack of co-operation from this Division in the apprehension of
Floyd axd wound up by stating that it was his fim belief that the Govern-
ment 4id not want Floyd. I took exception to Means' statemernts, infoming
him that we 4id want Floyd, and finally got him into what I thought was
a pleasent mood. After some dlscussion of Floyd between Means and me, it
was agreed that we would meet City Detective L. J. Eiggins of the Fort
8mith Police Department, Deputy Sheriff George Smith and Constabdle Jack
Pace, both of Fort Smith. I got in touch with these three men anda sked
them to ocome to my room, which they did, and I introduced them to Means.
The apprehension of Floyd was discussed by all of us at some length, and
Keane secemed to be pleased with this setup and the co-operation manifested
by the officers pamsd and by me. DBefore meeting Means I had contacted
these officers during fhe cowrase of my invesatigation to locate Floyd.

From time to time during the course of the investigation at -
Fort Smith, which lested several days, Means coxferred with me several
times, &s well as with the officers named above. His conferences with me
were at my roowm at the Ward Hotel. Any information that I obtained during
the course of this inveatigation which I believed he should have was im-
parted to him by me. I abowed him every courtesy and consideration, both
personally and officially, and extended to him every co-operation that 1
could, My personally-owned autcmobile was at his disposal at any time he
desired 1t. Captain Msans had scme of his personnel in Port Smith doing
undercover work, one of whom ia @ man by the pame of Massie or Massey.
At times, if I recollect properly, these men would repart to Means that
from the information they had received Floyd was same place inm Fort 8Bmith.
On one or more ooccasions Keans, shen he would receive this information,
not only reguested but demanded that men be brought from owr Division
office in Oklahoma City to make raids on certain places. When I realized
that the information was of such a character as not to warrant the bdringing
down of any men, I of course refused to call the office and ask the sgent
in Charge to send men down. When I would refuse to accede to these demands
of Lisana, he would remark, "You damned fellows 4o not want to get Floyd.®
A% no time during the ecourse of thie investigation 414 I d&o or say anything
that interfered in any manner, either directly or indirectly, with any setup
or undercover work that Major Means was interested in.
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On more than one ocoasion Means asked me to go on drinking
parties with him down in the vicinity whers Floyd's wife was supposed to
live, which wae not in & very desirable section of Fort Smith, and the
purposs of the proposed trip there was to seoure information from pros-
titutes or others who might have knowledge of the whereabouts of Floyd.

I 414 not accompany him to those places. I never took a 4rink of whiskey
or of any intoxicating liquor with Means in my life, nor did I take a
drink of whiskey with anyone during the course of this investigation,

If Ma jor Meana or any other person said that I was under the influence
of whiskey during this investigation, it is not the truth, and he is mis-
taken and I deny it fuily eand emphatically. I might have telen a drink
of beer with Leans aml might have drunk some soda water with him,

My report dated at Oklahoma 01tyv,' November 23, 1933, in the
case titled Vernon C, Miller with alisses, ot al, reflects that I was in
contact with Means during the course of this investigation at Fort Smith.

I wiah to state that at no time have I in Yort Smith or else-
where picked up any prostitute on the street and disclosed to her my 1den-
tity. I @o not go about the country with my automobile f£illed with fire-
arms. Recently I acquired a shotgun, which I carry in my ear but not
within view of any one. J 414 not have the shotgun when I was contacting
Msans nor any other such weapon. I 414 have a revolver but I 4id not carry
that where 4t would be conspicuous. I also wish to astate that I do not
and have not ever made it a practice to go adout the country brandishing
my revolver or shooting at objects along the highway. The only shooting
that I can recall that I ever 4id in the vicinity of Fort Suith was when
I purchased the shotgun I went out to the shooting range with Deputy Sher-
iff George Smith and shot a few times.

I was in Fort Smith during the month of Juns, 19034, at the time
there was a rodeo in progreas there. 1 recall that after the parade,
shortly after the noon hour, I went to the entrance of the rodec bdut aid
not go 1n0. I attended twe performances of this rodec, as well as I can
recall on the evenings of Juns 1lth and 12th, If I remember correctly, -
I attended the performance during the evening of June 12th with Deputy
Sheriff Maddox of Port Smith. By virtue of the official capacity of Dep-
uty Sheriff Maddox, he and I were permitted to view .this perfommance from
the anncuncer’s stand. I went to the announcer's stand so that I could
view the riders getting on the bucking horses, as I had never witnessed
this before. If I remamber correctly, there were three women and tiree
men, oxe of whom was the announcer, on the stand in addition to Maddox anmd
myself. I 4id not know any of thess parties snd do not know them now.

I was not intoxicated at any time during the attendance of this rodeo,
por at ‘any other time or place in Fort Bmith or elsewhere, nor was my
¢onduct such as to make myself comspicucus in any manner. During this
performance I recall that Maddox and I each drank a bottle of beer. I
deny that I drank any excessive amount of beer, and to the allegation
made by any one that I was intoxicated I have only to say that it is
ridiculous and adaolutely false.

L _omel




. During the time tlmt I was in Fort Bmith in June I had many
cocasions to go to the county jail, es 1t was necessary for me to contact
the officials there on investigations I was bhandling. I was there an
some occasions during the evening. The night jailer at the county Jail
is a man by the name of Jesse Wilson. He, I believe, resides in Green-
wood, a few miles from Fort Smith. He is a man of approximately fifty years
of age. He has grown children and on occasions one of his grown sons takes
care of the jail for him at night., I recall that on one occasion I met the
wife of Jailer Wilson, who appears to be a woman farty-five or fifty years
of age. I met this women and talked to her probably for a feow mimutes.

The conversation with her was general. I recall that one evening while I

was at the jail Mrs, Wilson as I was leaving t014 me she wanted to go dowmn
to the main street and get a drink of Coca Ceola. I accompanied her and a

woman sompanion of hers, whose nmme I 4D not know, in my car to scme place
en the main street of Fort Smith, bought them Arinks and returned them to

the jail. I was in their presence for only a short time. Any allegation
to the effect that my corduct with these women or any othsr woman in Fort

Smith was jmproper 1is sbsolutely without any foundation, and I deny it.

. During the course of my inveatigations at Fort S8mith and else-
where in this diatrict, the enforcement officials with whom I have come in
coptact have not in any manner manjifesated to me or by their actions or
words indicated any lack of co-opesration on the part of Division agenmta
with them. . :

-

The occasion referred to in this statement in Fort Smith is
the first and only contact ttat I lave ever had with Ma jor Means of the
Migsouri Btate Highway Patrol.

1 recall that during the course of the imvestigation at Fort
Smith in an effart to locate Floyd I had occasion to go with Means to
Muskogee, Oklahoma, at which time I contacted Shériff Cannon there. I
recall that I went up to Muskogee on a Saturday morning and returnsd to

Fort Smith on the following Sunday night. ¥We ocontacted at Muskogee & man
by the pame who was to be used as an informer btut who turned out

to be absolutely unreliable and further contact with him was not bad by me.

As the Division knows, efforts to locate Floyd were unsucoessful, but I

again wish to say that tlere was no oonduct of mine that in any mannar
interfered with any investigation that Means was making. .
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STATELENT OF D. X. WILLIS, FORT SITTH, ARKANSAS, JULY 7, 1924.

¥y neme is D. X. Willis and I am now and heve been for eleven
years & _member of the Fort Smith Police Department., I am now and have
deen for abont nine years assigned to night duty work from five in the
evening until five in the morning. My partner at the present time is
¥Mr. Lamar Higgins of the Fort Smith Police Department, and we have been
working together for sbout three years. We are members of the Detective
Division, '

I have on cocanions mot some of the Speclal Agents of the Divi-
sion of Investigetion, U, S. Department of Justice., I know Special Agente
J. ¥, Bdgar, J. J. Perkins, Frank Smith, H. E. Hollis and ¢there may dbe
others I have met whose names I cannot recall at this time.

While ¥r. Bdger was assigned here 1 frequently esw him around
the county jJeil at night. The county Jail 18 situated very near the elty
police department. I have on frequent occasions seen Mr. Edgar whon he
appeared to me to de under the influence of whiekey. I have never seen
him teke & drink and I wes not near enough to him to smell his dreath,
but I feel certain that he wzs under the influence of some alcoholic

beverage.

In elther March or April, 1934, es well as I recall, I was
gubpoensed to appear im Federal Court at Texnrkana, Arkmnsas. I left
Fort Smith alone in an antomobile on Sundey and drove to Texarksna.

I new beforehand that Mr, Bdgar and a deputy sheriff at Fort Smith by
the nane of George Smith were also to appear in Texarksna, I appeared
there on ¥Monday morning but 414 not see BEdgar or George Smith. I 414
see George Smith during the afternoon whem he came to the Federal Building.
I apkod hir where he had been and he esid the car hed droken dowm, Smith
told me that he and Bdgar treveled together in an automobile from Fort
Smith to Texerkana, He 444 not remain at the FPederal Bullding btut a
short time. 1 41d not see Ceorge Smith any more until the following
morning when I went to the room in the Grim Hotel at Texarkana, He
tried to get Blgar awake but 4id not succeed, so far as I know., 1 d4id
not see Blgar the entire time T was in Texarkana on this occasion,

lLater, after my return to Fort Smith, ¥r. Burns of the U, 8.
Marshall's office, or Mir. Weaver with the Reverme Service of the Govern~
ment,. told me that Bigar and George Smith were in a drunken condition in
Texarkansa; had difficulty of some kind with some of the niggers working
in the hotel and the police were called and Smith was teken to the city
Jail and locked up for & short time. lLater on I kidded George Smith adout
it and he %0ld me that the police et Texarkans di1d get him and put him
in Jall for a short time but that Bigar talked himseclf ont of it. Smith
4id4 not say whether he and Bdgar were drunk,

The foregoing is the extent of my kmowledge concerning any
drinking or alleged misconduct on the part of Mr. Bdgar.
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During the month of June, 1934, there was a rodeo at Fort Smith,
I attended this rodeo. I had met Mr, Perkins of the Divislon of Investl-
gation, U, S. Department of Justice before this rodeo., He was present.
It was in the afternoon between, I ahould say, two and five ofclock.
Perkins wag in ‘a4~ group of men and was drinking a oconsiderable amount
of beer. 1 should say I saw him drink fully ten or twelve bottles.
There were timss when he had ap many as four bottles in hie hands. He
wae not ewearing or brandishing any weapons but wae what might de termed
"clowning.” He appeared to me to be under the influence ¢of beer or some
alcoholic beverage. There was one occaplon when I felt that he should have
been taken awsy from there and I started on one occaslon to arrest him
but later he got quiet and eat down. I did not speak to him mor tell him
to dehave himself, - .

The foregoing are the only circumstances that I ean recall
in which I have heard of or observed any agents of the Divislon of Inves-

tigation engaging in any miscondnet.,
I have not had any experiences with any esgents of the Division

of Investigation in which they did not properly co-operate with me, nor
have I heard any other officers relate any circumstances in which said

egents did not render them proper ¢o-operation.




STATEIENT OF GEORGE H. SUITH, DEPUIY SHERIFF, FORT SMITH, ARKANSAS, JULY 7, 1934.

I an now and have been a deputy sheriff at Fort Smith for the
past nine months, Prior thereto I was engaged in investigative work in
this city. '

From time Yo time I have come in contact with various agents

of the Division of Inveatigation, U. 8. Department of Justice, in connec-
tion with investigations. Among those I have met are Messrs. J. J. Perkins,
J. K. Bdgar, T. ¥, Birch, G. H. Franklin and R. N. Butterworth. There are
possibly others whose names I am unable to recall at this time,

I recall that during the Fall of 1933, poesibly in Ootoder, Mr.
Porkins of the Division of Investigation was in Fort Smith and was conducte
ing some investigation in an effort to locate Charles Floyd., I wes in his
room cne day at the Ward Hotel and there for the first time met Major Meens
of the Missouri Highwey Patrol. When I was introduced to him his identity
was not disclosed to me. I later learned it and ascertained that he was
in Fort Smith seeking Floyd. Shortly after that Means asked me if arrange-
ments could be made to place a member of his orgenisation in an wmdercover
capacity in the vicinity where Floyd's wife was living, and I made such
arrangemepts for him through an informant of mine in Fort Smith dy the
name orh‘ Sergeant Masgey wes the man who was placed in the
undercover c¢apac . The investigation to locate Floyd bty Means and
Perkins lasted for seversl days, to the best of my recolleotion. It is
oy understanding that Mr. Perkins and Mr. Means probably went to Muskogee
on this same investigation, but I do not imow what happened in Muskogee.

Mr. Means had two members of his organization in this vicinity
on an wndercover jJob. They were posing as tough underworld characters
and ag & result they wore picked up by the local police. I assisted in
having them released. '

At that time I came in contact with Major Neans on several ocoa-
sions and have seen him some eince, The chly eriticiem or complaint that
I bave ever heard him make was to the effect that Mr. Perking "queered” an
investigation that they were conducting in the Floyd matter at Muskogee.
He did not go into any details whatever about it. This is the only occa-
sion on which I have ever heard Means or any member of his organization
criticise the Department of Justice or indicate its lack of proper co-
operation. I would like to state here, however, from my observation,
eans wag withholding from Perkins and from other officers all the informa=
tion he was getting, yet he was getting everything they had., I cite Major
Moans' apparent endeavor %o withhold his identity from me when hy had asked
me to assist him in placing an undercover man, above referred to, near
Floyd's wife, in support of this statement. ’

1 desire further to state I have worked many cases with agents
of the Division of Investigation and their co-operation has always been

— — #plendid, This is the same with respect to other Govermment agencies,
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I am well acquainted with all lew enforcement agencies in Fort Snith and
anm in position to lmow how they feel about such matters, and I wish to ‘ "
stete that I have not heard them make any complaints adout lack of proper
co-operation on the part of Divlsion of Investigation agents or any other
Govermment officers. .

1 do not now of my own Imowledge that any agents of the Division
of Investigetion have conspicuonsly or otherwise displayed any firearns or
promiscaously shot thelr pistols on highwnys or other places. .It is very
seldom that I heve ever seen an agent with firearms of any kind, I 4id hear
once, I do not rememder who told me, that Agent Perikins was once on the
highwey end shot his pistel at a bunch of crows, tut I can see nothing
wrong with that., Not long ago I accompanied Agent Perking to the rifie -
range here and with him shot his shotgun several tinmes.

1 do not know of my own knowledge, and have never hoard of any
agent of the Division of Inveatigation or other Government officer picking
up any prostitute on the streets of Fort Smith and making known to her his

I have never seen ir. Perkins under the influence of whiskey,
neither have 1 seen him take a drink of whiskey., I have been in his com-
pany when we would stop and duy & glass or bottle of beer. Of all the
agents of the Divisidon of Investigntion I have met I can recall only one
of whom I have seentakeadrinkofwhiskeyandthstmm Bdgar. When
I saw him take this drink it was about 10:30 at night, it was a ginfiss,
bhe was not at work and 4id not become intoxiocated, nor was he under the
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STATEMENT OF MR, LAMAR EIGCIES OF FORT SMITH, ABKANSAS, JULY 7, 1934. .

- My name is Lamar Higgins., I am now and have bean for the past
five years & member of the Fort Smith Police Deparitment. I have been
working nights @uring that time, ¥r. D. M. Willis is my partner. I work
from five in the evening until five in the morning. 1 am a menmber of the -
Detective Division. I have met Mesgrs, J. J. Perkins, J. M. Edgar, ¥. 8.
Smith and H. E. Hollis of the Division of Investigation, U. 8. Department
of Justice, and there may be others shom I bhave met whose names I do not
receall at this time,
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’{g - The City Police Department 1s situsted very near the county

Y. 20 jail at Fort Smith. I have on occasionsseen Mr, Bdgar at the county Jail
phy et night when he appeared to me to be under the influence of liquor or some
,é;;;':’:ﬁ alcoholic stimmlant, I have never seen him take & drink, nor have I ever
"“% seen him with any whiskey in his possession. 1 wmo never mear enough to
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him to smell his breath, but I do feel certein I have seen him when he
wag partially drunk. This was in the evenings,

i}

Either Mr, Burns of the U. S. Marshall's office or Mr. Weaver
of the Revemme Service at Port Smith, Arkansas, told me of Mr, Edgar and
& Deputy Sheriff by the name of Ceorge Smith of Fort Smith appearing at
court in Texarkans some time thip year about & day late. One of these
men asked me if I heard that Smith got in jail end I told him I had not
end then he related to me that Smith and Bdgar had some trouble with some
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R & niggers in the hotel &t Mezarkana and the police were called and Smith was
PSR s locked up for & short time, If I recall correctly, ome of these men who
'_if-'._»,;_‘; ] t0ld me of this occurrence said that Edger showed the officers his oreden-

{ S tials end he was mot locked up. Leter on I heard George Smith tell that
p he and Bdgar got into some argument or some fight with some niggers at
the hotel in Texariksna and that he, Smith, was locked wp, but that Bdgar
displeyed his credentials and was not Jailed. I did not go to Texarkana
and 4id not see any of this and none of it is within my owm knowledge.

As for Agent Perkins, I attended a rodeo in Fort Smith in June,
1934, and saw Perking there drinking large quantities of beer, "clowning”
about and making himself generally comspicuous., I d4id not speak to Per-
kins on this occasion. He impressed me as being pretty "fMll™. At one
time I saw him olinb up on top of the stand with the announcer, which was

fully twenty fect from the ground. RHe then got down and was seated and I
paid no more attention to him.

I met }r. Perking last Fall -~ I guess it wes in October -~ in
Port Smith, at which time he $0ld me he was working on scme angles of the
Floyd case. I saw him in his hotel room at the Ward Hotel on & couple of '
occagions, I did not know he was in any way workinz with any members of 5
the Misasouri State Highvmy Patrol. 1 have no knowledge of, nor have I 5
ever heard that any investigation that the Missouri Highway Patrol were
condncting in an effort to locate Floyd was in any way interfered with by
Porkins or any other agent of the Govermment.
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I do recall that some time last Pall I received information -
that there were some tough charzcters in town, and with some other offi- _
cors I arrested two men who later turned out ¢ be members of the Xissouri
State Highwey Patrol, and they were released. Thay were posing as tough
charscters, 1 suppose, in undercover capacity. Mr. Willis was one of the
officers who wae present when these two men were arrested,

In oy experienées with agents of the Division of Investigation
there has been no lack of co-operation, and I have not heard a.uy comple.inte

from any other sources of any lack of co~operation.

On several occasfons I have seen Mr. Perkins leave the County
Jail in the evening with & Mrs. Jese Wilson and return with her later.
This womer is the wife of Deputy Sheriff Wilson at Greenwood. On occasions
he wonld be alone with her and at other times there womld be some other
people along

The foregoing is a full and complote statement of my Imowledge
of or information concerning any alleged misconduct on the pa.rt of any
agent of the Divieion of Investigation.

oneon Weymed
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Oklahoma City, Oklahoma,
July 11, 1934

STATRENT OF SPECIAL AGENT (4) G. 4. STEVENS

Special Agent K. D. Deaderick and the writer left Oklahoma City
at 7:15 P.M. on the night of March 24, 1934 and arrived at the Ward Hotel,
Fort Smith, Arkanses, at 11:30 P.M., where we contacted Special Agents

T. M. Birch and J. Massey Fdgar et the Ward Hotel, which is direotly
opposite from the Pennetts Hotel. Agent Birch informed that it was thought
that possibly Charles Artbur "Pretty Boy" Floyd, I.0. #1194, and/or Adam
Racchetti might oontact 2 proatitute who operated in the Bennetts Hotel;
that after he had been keeping the plsce under surveillance for a few hours
MaJor Means of the Missouri State Highway Patrol called upon him at the
Ward Hotel and informed him that he hed received the same information and
that be, together with one of hie officers by the name of Massie, had
arranged to get the room next to that of the prostitute; that they would
try to "party" with the prostitute and see if they ocould obtain some in-
formation and be on hand in the event one or both of the fugitives did call
upon the girl, in which event they would signal Agent Birch from the hotel
room. - -

We kept the roam in the Bennetts Hotel under observation all
night. A short time after midnight the shades on the room ocoupied by
Means were drewn. Some time later, about 2:30 4A.M., a Police car contain=-
ing what appeared to be one uniformed officer and four or five plainclothes-
men pulled up in front of the DBennetts Hotel, went into the hotel and re-
turned to the car and drove away & short time later. Possidly an hour after
tbis 1 answered a knock on the door of our hotel roon and was informed that
it was Major Means; bowever, not kmowing bim, I 414 not open the door but
called pgent Birch, who recognized Means*' voice and Keana was admitted. He
informed that the roam in which he and Massie and a prostitute or twe had
been "partying® hed been raided by local officers, but that the offioers had
departed witbout seeing Means, who was in the bathroom at the time of the
#atd, and that they did not kmow that he, Means, was there. We ¢id not know
the reasop or details of the raid until later whep it was furnished to iAgent
Bireh by a Port Swmith Police officer. Means further stated at this time
that he was pleased with the raid as it made it more apparent to the pros-
titute that he and Massie were not law suforcemsnt officials. After & short
conversation he returned to the Bennetts Hotel. Means and Massie came to our
hotel room about 8:00 or 7:00 4.M. that morning. Means stated tbere wee a
mistake in the identity of the prostitute anl she was not the one the
fugitives were expected to contact. He 2id eonsiderable talking, while




Masaie said very little. Means rambled on as to his leads and activities
* in his attexpts to apprehend Floyd., He expressed the opinion that he had
received excellent cooperation from Division Agents and registered no
‘ecompleints in my presence. At the time of his departure he invited the
Special Agents present to his hotel room in the Bennette Hotel for e few
drinks of liquor, stating he had some left from the "party*, and while he
was not intoxicated, it sppeared, and I believe he stated, that he had
consumed oonsideradle liquor in an effort to get the prostitute intoxi-
ocated., This invitation was declined dy all Special Agents present., '

later in the day Agent Deaderiok and myself returned to Oklahoma
City. At no time during this entire trip did I take a drink of liquor or
have eny on my person, mneither did I ses any of the Special Agents mentioned
above teke a drink of liguor, or in any way indjcate that they had any
liquor on their person or with them,

This is oy one end only contaot with Major Means end Offigcer
Massie, : )




Oklahoma City, Oklaehoma
EDD: CG July 6, 1934

STATEMENT OF SPECIAL AGENT K. D. DREADERICK

: The following statament will relete By sole and only experience
with Me jor Means of the Missouri State Highwey Patrol, this being relative
to efforts to locate and cause the apprehension of Charles Arthur "Pretty
Boy“ ?loyd, I. 0. ‘11940

Acting under ipstructions of Specisl Agent in Charge Dwight

Brantley, I, sccompanied by Speciel Agent (4), G. A. Stevens, left Cklahoms
City vie. Government-owned sutomobile on Merch 24, 1934 at 7:15 p. m. and
errived et Fort Swith, Arkensas at 11:30 p, m,, previous information having
been received from Speciel Agent T, M. Birch at Fort Smith, Arkensas to ths
offect that a set-up which he had at Fort Smith epreared to be worthy of
atteation in producing Charles Arthur "Pretty Boy" Floyd, a Pugitive, who
is presently wanted by this Divieion. Agent Birch infommed thet he would
be et the Ward Hotel in Fort Smith, Arkensas.

Imnedietely upon arrivel at Fort 3mith, Agent Stevens snd I
discreetly loceted Speciel Agents T. M. Birch end J. Massey Rdgar in a room
in the Ward Hotel, being directly opposite a room in the Bannetts Hotel
ecross the street, in which was a woman believed to be Beulsh Baird, an
associate of Charles Arthur "Pretty Boy"™ Floyd.

Agent Birch informed me that Ma jor Means of the Missour{ State
Highwey Fatral and one of his officers by the nsme of Massis were in the
room with this woman in the Bennetts Hotel; that Mea jor Mesns had stated thet
he end Massie would throw e perty with this waunan and enfesvor to sscure
informetion fram her as to the whsreabouts of "Pretty Boy" Floyd; that in
the event Floyd or any other criminal made his appearance at this room,
Megns end Massie would immedistely signal Agent Birch to thet effect.

As above steted, upon my arrival with Agent Stevens at the Ward
Hotel st 11:30 p. m. on the evening of Merch 24, 1934, Stevene end I con-
tected Birch and £dger, and the four of us remeined {n this hotel room 4in )
the Ward Hotel during the remeinder of the night and kept & constant watch
on the room in the Bennetts Hotel in which Massie, Means end the wamen were
throwing the party.

At ebout 2 3. m. on the morning of March £5, 1934, Means pulled
both shedes to the bottam in the roam in which he was loceted, meking it,
therefore, impossible to see what wes going on in the room or for Means to
meke any signal,




At sbout 2 or 3 o'clock a. m, the morning of the £5th, I,
together with the other sgents, observed a police car pull to the curd in
front of the Bennetts Hotel end four or five plein-clothes officers went
to the room in which Means, Massie and the wanan were located, snd raided
thet place., I had aebsolutely no prior knowledge of this reid snd did

not know any of the men who mads the reid, whather thay were local police
officers, sheriffs or State officers. Bither shortly before or shortly
after this raid, Major Means came to our room in the Ward Hotel, at which
time, he conversed for a few moments, tut 414 pot indicate eny 11l feeling
or lack of cooperation. After daylight on the morning of the 25th, llnnl
and liassie both came to our room in the Ward Hotel, at which time, I-
conversed for same 45 minutes with Ma jor Means and he, et that time, atated
thet he hed convinced himself thet the women thet be hed believed to be
Beuleh Beird and who had been in the room in the Bannetts Hotel was not
Beulah Baird in fact. He expressed his appreciation for the ¢ooperation
and essietsnce that the Division agents hed afforded him, He appeared to
be friendly and did not exprees eny ill feeling towerd the Division or any
of its agzenta., Mr, Mssele, his asaistant, entered into the conversation
very }ittle, but upon thelir departure, they bvoth shook hands with the
other sgemts, as well as myself, end indiceted cordisl relationship.

after Major Means end Mr. Messis bed deperted, I, together with
the other three egents, sacured breskfast at the Ward Hotel, after which
Agent Birch and I interviewed e Mr. Walker who hed previcusly furnished
thia Division alleged informetion pertalning to Cherles Arthur *"Prstty Boy"
Floyd. Agent Birch end I then returned to the hotel and I, fram a booth
in the hotel, called Specisl dgent in Charge Brantley et Oklshome City.
At 1:20 p. m., Adgent Stevens and I departed from Fort mith. Arkenses anl
arrived et Oklaharva City, Oklahoma at 6:20 p. m.

At no time from the hour of my departure from Oklahom city to
_my return to Oklehome City did I see or parteake of any intoxicating bever-
eges whetsoever. Nelther did igents Bireh, Blgar or Stevens have or partake
of any intoxiceting beverages in my presence. The only time there was eny
indication of eny whiskey or intoxicents was at the time Ma jor Means called
at the room where we were located in the Ward Hotel. At thet time, it was
clearly evident that Major Meens had been drinking, because theres was a
atrong odor of whet appeared to bde corn whiskey on his breath, end he so
ateted that he had been drinking and trying to get the woman who was 4in the
room at the Bennetts Hotel intoxicated. I would not say that Ma or Yesns
was drunk, but undoubtedly he hsd teken saveral drinks.

I bave never st any time made a practice of riding elong the high-
weys end shooting at objects or firing my pistol or eny kind of e gun fram




the highway. Neither have I, at any time, carried in my car any prostitute
or girle thet I might pick up on the streets or highways,

. D. DEADERICK,
‘ Speciel Agent.
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m-. Pace related the following information which he stated ho
could not include in his signod statemsnt:

--. Some time last Fall two of Major Means men, menbers of the mnm:l State .
Highway Patrol, were in Fort Smith on undercover work and were frequenting
& had section of Fort Smith, They were posing as tough characters. Pace
seid that their conduct wes so tough that some of the persons in the section
they were frequenting thought that if these ¢wo fellows remelned there carry-
ing on as they were, it would cause the emtire locality to be raided by the
police, and that some underworld character at Fort Smith as a consequence
thereof informod the police and these two members of the Highway Patrol
were arrested and put in Jail. He stated that he was sent for and assisted
in effecting thelr release. Pace said he 414 not recall their names, These
two men possibly were lassey and Viets of the Missouri Highwey Patrol,

Pace sta ted that George Smith, now a deputy sheriff, is & good
fellow and is & good friend of his, Put thet he is given to exmggeration
and many statemente made dy him are nmot worthy of belief.

Pace is making the race for sheriff at Fort Smith. He enjoys
the reputation of being the most efficlent and most honorable officer in
Fort Smith or Sebastian Comnty, Arkansas. The primary is in Angust, 1934.

I went into a discussion with Pace as to his experiences with the
agents of this division and hé told me that his relations with our repre-
sentatives had at all times been cordial, that in his contacts with us
there has been no lack of co-operation and that he considers those agents
with whom he has come in contect ap splendid men and that thelir econduct
et ell times, within his lmowledge, has been exemplary. I asked him if
any information had come to his attention from any source in Fort Smith,
or otherwise, as to lack of co-operation on the part of Division agemtn.
and he stated he had received none,

Pace impresees me ag being & man of & high order of intelligence
and possessed of sound judgment. He gtated that in Fort Smith, as in other
places, there is 2 certain amount of Jealousy existing Detween law emforce-
ment agencies. He cited for purpose of illustration the following: &Sup~
pose & repreaentative of the Division or of the Secret Service or of some
other Govermment agency were to come into Fort Smith and wore to meke &
contect with & certalin police officer and were seen over a period of three
or four days in the company of that police officer by merders of other law
enforcement agencies. later it prodadly wounld decome necessary for this
represcntative of the Govermment to contact on some officildl matter & rep-
resentative of one of the agencies other than that of wvhich the officer in
whose company he had been seen on severzl occesions; Pace gald that the
representative of such agenoy on scoount of his jealousy and the fact that
he had been piqued at the fact the Government officer had not come to see
hin defore, would refer him probably to the identical officer in whose
corpany he had been pseen soveral times. Pace said that of ocurse this ig
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narrow-mindédness, that he is not in sympathy with it, btat just such things
have occurred in Fort Smith. He also stated that some law enforcement ..
officers in Fort Smith, and perhaps in other places, because of jealounsy
might make some stetement which womld be without any basts in fact, that
there-was a lack of co-operation on the part of Govermment officers.

In a further discussion with Pace relative to the allegation
that an agent of the Division might have picked up some prostitute or
might have bdeen indiscriminately associating with prostitutes in Fort
gmith, he stated that he kmows for a fact that a representative of the
Burns Detective Agency by the name of Bancock some months ago was in Fort
Smith at the Ward Hotel and he had occasion to contact him there and that
while he wes in the room discussing a matter with him Billie James ocame in
$0 see Hancook and the latter told her to coms back in ten mimtes as he
was busy. Pace sald that 1t was possible thet this Burns representative
might have made some statement to the effect that he was with the Govern-
ment, or that this woman might have learned that Rancock wes soms kind of
of an investigator and she might have gained the impression that he was
with the Govermment. ‘

-

Pace further stated that there wes a representative of the Burns
Agency in Arksnsapg by the name of Bill Graham who carries at all times
mich heavy armament and that invariedbly this man Graham has some woman
with him apd that he does not know whether she is his wife or some one
elee,

Pace further.stated that he is and has deen on good terms with .
Major Means of the ¥issourl Highway Patrol, and that he believes that if
possidbly Means had any real complainte to make with respect to the repre-
psentatives of the Division, he would have told him about it, dut that the
foregoing are the only matters that Means has ever mentioned to him abdbout
the Divipion or ite persannel.
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STATELENT OF JACK PACE MADE AT FORT SMITH, ARKANSAS OR MY 7, 1934

My name is Jack Pace and I am at the present time a constable
in Port Smith, Arkaensas, I have held thie office in this oity for approx-
imately eight years. During that period I have come in contact with _
many officers of various kinds who come into this vieinity to eonduot
investigations. |

= From time to time Special Agents of the Division of Investi-
gation, U. S. Department of Justice, have contacted me on official mat-
ters. Among those who bave contacted me I can recall Agents J. J. Per-
kKins, J. M. Bdgar and 7. M. Birch. There are others who have contacted
me and whose names ] cannot recall just now,

I remember that some time last Fall, 1%t might have been in
October, Mr., Perkdine of the Division of Investigation was in Fort Smith
and informed me he was conducting some investigation in an effort to
locate Charles Floyd. He introduced me, &3 I recall, to & Mejor Means
of the Mispouri State Bighway Patrol. This was my firet meeting with
¥ajor Means. I remember that I met Means at the Ward Hotel. At the
time he was introduced to me his identity was not roevealed tome. I
was particularly busy at the time and 4id not obtain the details of any
getup that Major Means and Perkins had 1n Fort Smith to investigate in
this matter. 1 introduced George Smith, then & private investigator
and now a deputy eheriff at Fort Smith, to Perkins and Means and I under-~
stand that he assisted them some but to what extent I do not mow.

' 1 recall that I introduced Means to C. I. Welker who owned
the house in Fort Smith in which the wife of Floyd had been living.

I 4id not fallow the progress of the investigation conducted
by Means and Perkins. 1 saw Perkine from time to time and have seen
¥eans since. 1 wish to state that at no time have I ever seen Mr.
Porkine under the influence of whiskey or drinking in any way. Also
wish to state that I have no complaint to make relative to Perkins!
conduct in Fort Suith or elsewhere, neither have I heard of any mis-

oonduct on hie part.

In March of 1934 I had a photograph of & woman by the name of
Beulah Baird, supposed to be an associnte of Floyd and who was thought
to be stopping at the Bemnett Hotel in Port Smith. I had Deen informed
by Bodb Williams, the manager of the hotel, that the woman in that estad-
1lishment by the name of Billie Jemes resemdled this photograph. I got
in touch with Agent Birch of the Depertment of Justice, who was in Port
Smith, and told him about it. 1 also contacted Meens about the same
thing. I recall there was some investigation Ly Means and agents of the
Department of Justice but the woman turned out to be someone else than
Beulah Beird, There was & yrald, so I wae informed, at the Bemnett Hotel
and some of Major Moans'men were there while they were trying to ocomdunot
an investigation. I do not know who was responsible for the raid.
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I remembder ome Baturday afternoon in the larshall's office at -
Fort Smith, ¥r. Birch, Marhhall Rudspeth, Major Meane and I were talking
and eome remark was made about whether anybody had had sny definite in-
formation 88 to the whereabouts of Floyd within a certain period of time.
¥ajor Means asked Birch if he had any definite information to that effect
end the final result of it was that Birch said he did not, but these
might have been some remark of his from which an inference t be
drawn that he had heard of his wheresbouts. Means later on in the
presence of another person said there did mot seem to de the proper
co-operation between his department and the Department of Justice.
That is all that he said and did not mention or cite any epecific cases.

1 do mot know of any misconduct on the part of eny Department
of Justice agent at Fort Smith end nobody has told me of any misconduct

by any of them.

I recall that in a conversation at which }eans and Yarshall
Hudspeth, and possibly Mr. Birch, and I were present at abont that time,
Yeans said that in talking with this woman Billie James ehe had remarked
that she had had a date with some Government officer in jhe Ward Hotel,

tut no mention was made of ary guns or anything else. did not men-
tion the neme of the man with whom she had the date. Keans and the rest

of us leughed about it and mo particular attention was d to it.
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JOHN EDGAR HOOVER
DIRECTOR

Reference is made to your memorandum for the Identification
Unit deted July 31, 1934, concerning the ecase of Vermon COMlller with
aliases {decease wherein this Uni dnstructed to place wanted
notices on Jamesigove £679493, Meye man $#358865, and Phillip Tom

scuola §#395713, showing these individuals to be wanted by the Eansas
City Office,

Please be advised that wanted notices have been placed
ageinst these ipdividuals in the files of the Identification Unit,

In camwliance with your request the Tingerprints of these
individuals have been submitted to the Single Yingerprint Sectlon for
£iling and comparison with latent fingerprints in this oase,

)
A3
Respectfully, .::
' LA /94«- et W}
L, A. Hi.nce. “\:‘;
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) @ : - Mr. Nathan _........
- Mr. Toleon e,
. s » - - § M CleRE oo
] ‘ Bibision of Infreatinution Mr. Boughman......
- . Cwie! Clark ..cveaces
A 8. Beparimend of Yustics Mr. COMMBY veeracman.
.o P. o._‘ Box 1276 Mr, Cowley .imnra..
o . Oklehoma City, Oklahoma Mr.Edwards........
dugist 3, 1934 Mr. E2an oo -
DB:CC Mr, Harbo ..........
62-456 Mr. Keith ...
: Mr. Lesier .. aaa...
PERSONAL m%’ e, Quing e -
o m c m Ilﬂl‘. YL IT -.4
mrﬁctor, . Ur\ 13 M emwacuc 2 4 a%basbAnaddan
Diviaion of Investigation,
U. S. Department of Justice, A 19
1001 Vermont Avenue, N. W., ¢
VYashington, D, €. PBANND
Dear Sir; |
0 e A
Re: VERNON C, with aliases, (Ddceassd); =~ ¥ ‘' 0L O
RICHARD TAS, with aliades « i
FUSLFIVE, 1. 0. #1201; CHARLES ARTHUR "PREMSE © 1934 -
FLOYD, with sliases - !'UGITI‘VE I, 0, ¢ -0
#1194, et al,
- CONSPIRACY TO DELIVER A FEDERAL rmsonm v&
5D OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE.
\ llention was mede by me recently in a telephonic eonversation

: \‘i k I talked with her that she has realized the way all outlaws are going, that

with Mr, Tamm of the Division to the effect that I proposed to utilize the
services of a gertain informant in an effort to obtain information as to KN

the whereabouts of subiee fact, thers are two _-
manta, One s r}
. has be or the past sevaral years asspeciated ~5

a woman in her late twenties, This woman
rn and reared in the Coockson Hills near
She 18 related by marriage to the wife of Charies Floyd,
She was dbrought up in the same commnity with Floyd and knows him well.
Floyd te said to have been fond of her at one time and probabtly still is 1if
. she would receive his advances favoradly.

I got in touch with these people through A, Bj Cooper, a Burns*
representative in Oklshoms City., They came to the office and I interviewed
then., Both the man end the woman are smart and clever in the ways of the
outlaws. I talked to them together and separately. s atated that
in the past he wanted to “finger® Floyd, but could pot do it unleas the
woman were willing to assist him, as 1t would have to be done through her,
Until recently shs has not been willing to underteke it. She told me when

. BEGORL g NCPY rTOn W

is, that they are being killed, and she knows that Floyd will eventually get
it. She would 1like, she says, tc see him apprehended without being shot to
death, if possidle. She believes it can be done. She says she will do what
she can to locate him, and she believes that she ean effect the job. She L4

Wb , ,,:

R A i
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aaid that word bhad been received by her from tims to time that Floyd wants’
to asee her, dut that she has pot mads any effort to contact him for the
reason that to do so she thought was dangeroux. She says she has not seen
him since last October, but she has every reason to believe that he still
desires that she contact him. She said the last word that she received from
hin was to the effect that he wanted her to make a eertain trip for him,
probedbly into Missouri. Both people are interested in any reward that they
can obtain in this matter. .

-haa e great deal of confidence in Cooper. I talked to
-ﬂth ent Smith of this offiee and Cooper., I made it ummistakadly

elear to and to the woman that we want infomation as to where Floyd
is, and that it is & serious business. Both are aware of the seriousness of
it. This man and woman stated that they would need the services of an anto-
modbile in traveling around. I obtained for them in Oklahoma City from & used
car concern & car which is not registered in the neme of anyone connected in
ery manner with the Division., Arrangements have been made with this uaed ear
fimm that in the event is arrested with the car and is queried about it,
reference can be made to the nsed ear concern and they will inform anyone in-
quiring to the effect tha is purchasing it on the payment{ plan, The
expenss for the use of the car will dbe very small, I furnished and the
woman some money with whiech to defray their expenses. '

. They will go into the country east of Muskogee, Oklahoma to make
their eontacts in an effort to get in tmoch with Floyd., Agent Smith is at
Miskogee., They know bow to contact him there and know how to contact me.

The Division will be adyised of developments.
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JOHN EDGAR HOOVER
+  DIRECTOR

160 to 170 pounds in weight.
time later he saw a tust photograph of ®PRETTY BOT®
FLOYD, and he pow believes that the man he saw in the
botel with these three women was Floyd.

This is sutmitted for your informatiom.
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Mr, M. 8.Y{Zimmernan, an Attorney of the Tax

Diviegion, en the fifth floor of the same building I

occupy, called at my office just mow and informed me

that he was handling & case in July at Nashville,

Tennessee, and at the Hotel Bermitage on July 21, 1934,

he saw a man with three woman who were registered

there on the fifth or sixth floor of this hotel, whom

he described as about 5' 11%, or 6' tall, good build, : .
He adviped that sowe .
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